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Consolidated Income Statement
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Hiat AR¥ T ABREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(#eE5l)
(Restated)
Uy #5 Revenue 6 58,953,788 55,578,849
SHE R Cost of sales (41,615,827) (38,200,525)
EH Gross profit 17,337,961 17,378,324
H s Other revenue 8 270,786 218,178
HiFBA(ER) Other net income (expenses) 9 719,726 489,131
PaR iz ] DN Distribution costs (11,268,583) (12,070,325)
THER Administrative expenses (2,189,111) (2,043,995)
HihaL e & A Other operating expenses (1,124,355) (1,115,639)
M%ER Finance costs 10 (454,868) (496,303)
JEIREEE N A ARFI¥ELE  Share of results of associates
and joint ventures 101,180 74,145

BB AR R Profit before taxation 10 3,392,736 2,433,516
T8 Taxation 12 (1,137,368) (1,051,453)
R B F Profit for the year 2,255,368 1,382,063
EER Profit attributable to:

PAN/NGT)ES Owners of the Company 1,819,077 1,161,699

DHRR RS Non-controlling interests 436,291 220,364
AEERF Profit for the year 2,255,368 1,382,063
FRER Earnings per share 14

HR Basic RMB32.45 cents |[RMB20.73 cents

e Diluted RMB32.42 cents |[RMB20.73 cents

REMEIZAR
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SREZERER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
AR¥TFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#eE5lf)
(Restated)
AEERF Profit for the year 2,255,368 1,382,063
Ht2mEmk=E(ER) Other comprehensive income (loss):
TEESEE Items that will not be reclassified to
HEmiRE profit or loss:
AERMEEZEHE Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligations 52,037 114,892
EAHE &R EHE Items that are or may be reclassified
Ba R 8y EH subsequently to profit or loss:
E W ZERH Exchange differences on consolidation 316,324 (610,001)
AERNESHEEAREZEE Fair value changes in available-for-sale
financial assets 95,396 57,458
RAFEHERHEE Reclassification adjustments relating to
TREECEDERAE available-for-sale financial assets
disposed of during the year (21,080) (45,548)
390,640 (598,091)
REEFEHMEZEKE(EE) Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the year 442,677 (483,199)
AEELHIKZERE Total comprehensive income
for the year 2,698,045 898,864
EEEEKE : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
ViN/NE): 323 Owners of the Company 2,218,857 692,718
DR RS Non-controlling interests 479,188 206,146
2,698,045 898,864
EFBERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
72017912 A31H At 31 December 2017

201745 20164 R2016%F
12A31H 12A318 1A18
At 31 At 31 At 1
December December January
2017 2016 2016
BtaE AR¥FT AREFIT AREFITT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
(#E &%) (#5&E%l)
(Restated) (Restated)
BE ASSETS
RBEE Non-current assets
A EHE Investment properties 15 1,106,000 1,060,000 1,003,200
Y% - H2INERME  Property, plant and equipment 16 28,014,779 32,556,784 35,041,574
TR A E Prepaid lease payments 17 3,730,767 3,932,435 3,946,771
miEE Intangible asset 18 162,936 179,179 172,404
BES Goodwill 19 97,910 — —
NS Interest in associates 21 120,568 160,538 190,948
EX-VNSIL Interest in joint ventures 22 660,691 676,408 555,405
At E SR EE  Available-for-sale financial assets 23 638,526 641,619 598,163
HEt3ERBEE Other non-current assets 24 317,964 — 100,000
BELERIBEE Deferred tax assets 36 308,010 276,291 318,185
35,158,151 39,483,254 41,926,650
REEE Current assets
rE Inventories 25 2,396,941 2,482,202 2,115,472
FEUER SR Trade receivables 26 1,636,385 1,589,893 1,515,556
AT EIF I8 Tax recoverable 23,393 120,861 95,971
TERT IR R Prepayments and 27
H {th FE Y5k IR other receivables 4,599,397 2,613,009 2,785,990
EIRIRITERK Pledged bank deposits 28 58,312 42,352 78,231
IR1TEEBR MR Bank balances and cash 28 10,226,577 10,189,460 6,568,960
18,941,005 17,037,777 13,160,180
HEE Total assets 54,099,156 56,521,031 55,086,830
FRADEIZAR
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FABEARRE | Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
$2017412431H At 31 December 2017

1201745 20164 R2016%F
12A31H 12A31H 1818
At 31 At 31 At 1
December December January
2017 2016 2016
it AR¥FT AREFT ARETFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
(#& &%) (#&&ES))
(Restated) (Restated)
BREZRERE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
IR A 15 Capital and reserves
BATIRAR Issued capital 29 235,053 234,767 234,710
&N Share premium 30 611,736 523,278 505,449
G Reserves 31 17,565,290 17,365,495 17,971,880
PN Total capital and
EERAR reserves attributable
fRiERE to owners of the Company 18,412,079 18,123,540 18,712,039
DEREERE Non-controlling interests 3,881,965 5,977,039 6,463,657
RERERBE Total equity 22,294,044 24,100,579 25,175,696
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
RARBEYIIRNY  Financial liabilities at fair value
B mRE IR through profit or loss
NEemBaE 33 5,258 152,650 58,959
REAEEEBE Long-term interest-bearing
borrowings 34 6,608,953 6,880,190 8,612,499
HEM3EmsaE Other non-current liabilities 41 40,000 — —
BITRMNEE Employee benefit obligations 35 101,226 205,573 278,569
BELERIBERE Deferred tax liabilities 36 1,070,026 1,473,995 1,440,259
7,825,463 8,712,408 10,390,286

REEIZERERA R
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B#ARNFR | Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2017512 HA31H At 31 December 2017

201745 20164 20165
12A31H 12A318 1A18
At 31 At 31 At 1
December December January
2017 2016 2016
HiaE AR¥FT AREFIT AREFITT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
(#E &%) (#5&E%l)
(Restated) (Restated)
REEE Current liabilities
FERTER X Trade payables 37 7,119,423 6,595,355 4,690,033
HEARIER Other payables and
B2 deposits received 38 7,417,032 6,697,875 6,671,542
BARBEYIERN  Financial liabilities at fair value
friE=RRE through profit or loss
NemBE 33 37,448 — —
BEBE Current portion of interest-
BVER B bearing borrowings 34 7,775,320 9,163,746 7,293,262
BRI RIA Advance payments
from customers 1,284,590 1,015,548 799,838
FimE Taxation 345,836 235,520 66,173
23,979,649 23,708,044 19,520,848
wEE Total liabilities 31,805,112 32,420,452 29,911,134
BREREZEREEHE Total equity and liabilities 54,099,156 56,521,031 55,086,830
FREBEE(EME)  Net current assets (liabilities) (5,038,644) (6,670,267) (6,360,668)
BWEERREEME  Total assets less
current liabilities 30,119,507 32,812,987 35,565,982

F10722498H 2

REMBBRRCHAES

A=

EMN2018F3A20 8 M E R IBRESE

WHRATALTREKRE

FLFEIN Wei Ing-Chou

ZEZ Director

&

These consolidated financial statements on pages 107 to 249 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20

March 2018 and signed on its behalf by

H# A4 —BB Junichiro Ida

ZEZ Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

AATRRER

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREE JERRER &R

IR Rh&E Total Non- Enes
Issued Share B capital and controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

NEETE  AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
(#Z5)) (#Z7)) (#Z7)) (#Z7)) (#Z7)) (#Z7))
(Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq)

R201651518 At 1 January 2016 234710 505,449 17,971,880 18,712,039 6,463,657 25,175,6%
RERAT Profit for the year - - 1,161,699 1,161,699 220,364 1,382,063
2 mhE (FE) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERNEMERE Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation - - 83,957 83,957 30,935 114,892
EREE Exchange differences on consolidation - - (564,848) (564,848) (45,153) (610,001)
ARHELREERAEZED  Fairvalue changes in available-for-sale
financial assets - - 57 458 57 458 - 57458
FEEHETHLELRER  Redassfication adjustment relating
LENERE to available-for-sale financia
assets disposed of during the year - - (45,548) (45,548) - (45,548)
Rft2mEbiEaE Total other comprehensive loss - - (468,981) (468,981) (14218) (483,199)
REERANGAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 692,718 692,718 206,146 898,864
BALARRZRS Transactions with owners
of the Company:
KRELST Contributions and distribution
EREERITHZ A Equity settled share-based transactions - - 55,157 55,157 - 55,157
REBREERT2BR Shares issuied under share option scheme 57 17829 (4,220) 13,666 - 13,666
EREREE0SERERE 2015 final dividend approved and paid - - (806,485) (806,485) (87,183) (893,668)
57 17829 (755,548) (737,662) (87.183) (824,845)
HEEEY Changes in ownershyp interest
EEUHHRHENNELT  Changes in ownership interest in subsiciaries
ERERD without change in control - - (543,555) (543,555) (605,587)  (1,149,136)
BARTRRZRFAE Total transactions with owners
of the Company 57 17829 (1,299,103) (1,281.217) (692,764) (1,973,981)
#0165 128318 At 31 December 2016 234,767 53,278 17,365,495 18,123,540 5,977,039 24,100,579
EAEERERAT
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e REREER | Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HZE2017%F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

ADARRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RARfE SakRExR R
BORA Ri%E Total Non- ERiE
Issued Share fife capital and controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity
ABETE  ABETT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT ARETR
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
(£E7)) (£E7)) (£E7)) (£E7)) (£ (£E7))
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
R2017E1B1R(BES) At 1 January 2017 (Restated) 234,767 523,278 17,365,495 18,123,540 5,977,039 24,100,579
TER R Profit for the year - - 1,819,077 1,819,077 436,291 2,255,368
2 m (58 b Other comprehensive (loss) income
AERHERZERE Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation - - 41,664 41,664 10,373 52,037
BHES Exchange differences on consolidation - - 283,800 283,800 32,54 316,324
ARNESREERNECEE  Fairvalue changesin
available-for-sale financial assets - - 95,396 95,396 - 95,396
FERHETHLESHEE  Reclassification adjustment relating
LENERE to avaiable-for-sale financial assets
disposed of during the year - - (21,080) (21,080) - (21,080)
A2 EUELE Total other comprehensive income - - 399,780 399,780 0,897 44,671
AEERAUEAR Total comprehensive income for the year — — 2,218,857 2,218,857 479,188 2,698,045
HALNARRZRS Transactions with owners
of the Company:
KREAST Contributions and dlstribution
EREEROTHZZA Equity settled share-based transactions - - 44,234 44,234 - 44,234
REERET IR Shares issued under share option scheme 286 88,458 (21357) 67,387 - 67,387
ROURER DL Put options witten to a
non-controlling shareholder - - (4,135,120) (4,135,120) - (4,135,120)
DRRRERTLE Witten back of finandial iabilties
EREMmREEE upon cancellation of put options
MeRek written to a non-controlling shareholder - - 4,135,120 4,135,120 - 4,135,120
BRERTE16EREARE 2016 final dividend approved and paid - - (580,849) (580,849) (119,876) (700,725)
286 88,458 (557,972) (469,228) (119,876) (589,104)
BEEE Changes in ownershyp interests
EEREHFESEL Non-controlling interest arising from
baRRER (1) business combination (Note 41) - - - - 171,560 171,560
BRI A Change in ownership interest
WEAREGEE in subsidiaries without change
in control - - (1,461,090) (1,461,090) (2,625,946) (4,087,036)
- - (1,461,090) (1,461,090) (2,454,386) (3,915,476)
BALARRZRAEE Total transactions with owners
of the Company 286 88,458 (2,019,062) (1,930,318) (2,574,262) (4,504,580)
R2017512 8318 At 31 December 2017 235,053 611,736 17,565,290 18,412,079 3,881,965 22,294,044
RENEIZER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Btat AR¥EFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(#5EZ))
(Restated)
REES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REEKFEESE Cash generated from operations 39 8,499,095 9,312,165
BRI ERER The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
enterprise income tax paid (1,367,551) (831,365)
EHEAE Interest paid (449,626) (486,609)
RETEBBESFEE Net cash from operating activities 6,681,918 7,994,191
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BB Interest received 270,786 218,178
BUAE R AT Dividend received from a joint venture 93,001 —
WA HEE 2R Dividend received from available-for-sale
BERF financial assets 1,103 —
RER L E Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
TREEZE financial assets 79,484 124,116
BAGEBIRE Purchase of debt investment (900,000) —
BARTELHESREE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (16,983) (69,365)
BAKREMEE Purchase of investment properties — (166,259)
A - W RERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,048,568) (1,539,378)
W T2 —IE R 2 EY)  Deposit paid for acquisition of a commercial
FIX MEE® building located in Tianjin (190,778) —
BT AR E Prepaid lease payments (18,371) (316,541)
MEMZE - WRRR Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
N+ 40 895 B 2 Frig equipment and prepaid lease payments 162,575 111,333
HEREEREMEZ TS Proceeds from sale of investment properties 223 —
U B8 B 8 A B AT 1538 /%88 Net cash inflow on acquisition subsidiaries 100,027 3,603
& W B A RIFT1538 €% 58 Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries 663,128 —
FEUS AT B B A7) Net movement of amount due from
ZEERE former subsidiaries (11,788) —
BEARETEFHE N A Capital contribution to associates (15,605) (6,196)
BRFTETEERR Capital contribution to joint ventures — (10,255)
RETZBHFAREEE Net cash used in investing activities (831,766) (1,650,764)

BRMEZERERAA
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HABELRER | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2017%F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Btat AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(#5EZ])
(Restated)
BMEEH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BNARRRIEEZEE Dividends paid to owners of the Company (598,505) (851,254)
ENLEBREREZRS ZRE  Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (114,752) (90,123)
TR IR BB I 5T 818877 Z IR 1D Issue of shares under share option scheme 67,387 13,666
g mm i E S Net proceeds from issuance of
unsecured notes — 995,999
HFIERITE R Proceeds from bank borrowings 5,944,184 7,316,334
EERITRHEMER Repayments of bank and other borrowings (9,085,460) (8,962,313)
Hi@HEEY Net movement of other
BE)FEE short-term borrowings 2,028,635 (67,781)
XA E D R R Payment for acquisition of
non-controlling interests (4,003,636) (1,146,012)
METBHFIARSFHE Net cash used in financing activities (5,762,147) (2,791,484)
ReRBESZEEYN Net increase in cash and
AN cash equivalents 88,005 3,551,943
FRNZBREERRELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 10,231,812 6,647,191
bR EE) & Effect on exchange rate changes (34,928) 32,678
FRZESRRESZEMEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 28 10,284,889 10,231,812
RENSIZAR

2017 Annual Report £

115



e VI RAR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The address of its principal place of business
is No. 1688, Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged
in trading of spare parts of machineries and raw materials.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant
noodles, beverages and instant food products. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2016 consolidated financial statements except for the change in
presentation currency and the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs
that are relevant to the Group and effective from the current year
as detailed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.



FAETSIRERMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017%F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

RREEE) 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
EEBESEABEEE . REE In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
H ERAEBRHEERRY directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
B EBH ARKS,038,644,000 7T financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,
(20164 - AN R ¥6,670,267,000 as the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
) AESEDEETFEAERE RMB5,038,644,000 (2016: RMB6,670,267,000) at the end of the
ARARRzEEES MNAEFRK - reporting period.

EEENAREERBEBE BT Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
ZEEMBRAT RAAEERLEAR the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
BB RMDERTE XIBH B & to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
o it AV KERRAFTEK foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
g EARE - statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
TESTHE 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) MRHEEE (a) Basis of measurement

MRBR A M IS IR A RE(E
REERE  REAAEET
ReREUERME AJHES
MEE BoABEIERE
BaRRENSTREERTR
BEDUAAEBERE - FIB
HNTINZEFTEEK

(b) HEEE

REMBBRREBBARARE
MBABzMEHmE - BET
REPBHRERO2HFEELR
AFER - S BRITER—
o

AEBEAFZ QR ZEHETR
IR BEZERSR X5 K
X RB@RH2HIE - HEA
AIH) SR AR B AN 5 E BUS 12 il 4
ZBHIREA G WHEES O
BAREEE IR -

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets
at fair value, and financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

REMEIZAR
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B R FRMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

3.

FEEHHEE)

(b)

REER(E)

DB RER B AR T
BRELEEZDFZIINGES
WHR HaZERERAR
REEEHMBARRR LA -
BEKBELHA AN BRE
SHRAANGRRULIIDERE
BEFEZ VBB RER - 7
MR AR BEXDBRRE
= AT R AR BB 77 A R wR A Lt I B
RREBET 2 EFMLPHBRE
#a FFEEERBEEBWE
MIEHEE - RIFFBUBR
FREAE KA S — @R K
B BRIEM R IR
amm DA ARBEREE -

DE 2 E e ARRE

AERRERE2E RN SR
BB ARRRE N DEER
BEOME ZEHREERER
ARm R R M B R R
@ IEEeERIHME
mBERER -

HERE

EEHURENM B~ B E S
ZAGEBEBEEE  RER
RPN - R R D BARE
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B RERHBSEEACDH
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BERERRZ BO BB R
R REHER > YHARAR
Rl e
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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3.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.
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3.

FEEHHEE)
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

—Instant noodles 12 years
— Beverages 10 to 12 years
—Instant food and others 5to 10 years
Electrical appliances and equipment 5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3 to 10 years
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FTESTRRE) 3.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) %3 - BBERREBE) (d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
BEHERNSHETHEETRE An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
HAB e & A {r] R RS R upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
W ¥ KBENREEE expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
R HER - EWE - HWBERFH gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
BHEXEZEREMEZEE - as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
REREMS FEEEERT carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
BREZZEANUTE - LR the year in which the item is derecognised.
REZEER -
EWME  WBRREEZEK—E When property, plant and equipment becomes an
HEMEME  RkERER investment property, any difference at the date of change in
BHZMENEREAELRAE use between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
ZENENERSRBELEY property is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation
FHAERIZE 16 9% 2 ERAIS IR in accordance with HKAS 16.
REMERRE -

(e) #EEIR (e) Construction in progress
TEREIRELIEZESNER Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
HIOETF  BENRMEE IR machinery under construction or pending installation and
BB REBEE )T is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
BR o AN B IEERR KU EE A A Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition and
REEBXRLZEERAK - £ capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made on
TEEZEEBEETKLAE Construction in progress until such time as the relevant
BEBRRATHETE -8 assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
EEHERR AT E the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
BAYE  MENKRE iR are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
B XXM FE3(d) P E 2 R iR depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
BINE - above.

() REUEHE (f) Investment properties

BEME 0 ER LI A2 S H
A ANSEABRAREREHE
ERE - URBHEESRA -5
LEHE it B 45 B 2 AT TN RETE HO R
KEsAENBMEMEEHEEE
WE - mEREUFSHETE
WHITARABEFE -

Investment properties are land and building that are held by
owner or lessee under finance lease, to earn rental income.
These include properties held for a currently undetermined
future use and properties that are held under operating
lease, which satisfy the definition of investment property
and carry at fair value.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(9)

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued. The fair value is based
on market value, being the estimated amount for which
a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s
length transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties have each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset

Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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TEEHBRE) 3.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) THEHEE (h) Prepaid lease payments
THHLREANLERLYE Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
RBAARBAAGERHZMERER fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land that are classified
B FE R s 2B A - as operating leases. The premiums are stated at cost less
B TY AR AR 0 R R 5 85 AN accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
ZEHREB LT - W E losses and are amortised over the period of the lease on a
NABGIAE Y - straight-line basis.

(i) MEBRR (i) Subsidiaries

MEBARDASEEZESZE
B AKEE2EZERER
AR NSEIR & mEm LA
NEBEE N T EE LD RE
BEREHZER - HBEFER
BRBERY bl —TRk % IAE
HIRRHRE(L  AEEKE
AR BENBIRE T -

EARBBBHRRRA - KB
N A AR SR EE R
FHESRRERZER - B
A # 21 2 R (B 2 13 Bl OB =
Huj O a5 - B R R EE
AR BRI B &
BN

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group's interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

(k)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when and only when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade
date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets or
financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial
liabilities.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss include financial assets or financial liabilities
held for trading, financial assets or financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss, and financial assets or financial liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement
in a business combination to which HKFRS applies. They
are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are (i) acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; (i) part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii)
derivatives that are not financial guarantee contracts or not
designated and effective hedging instruments.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss only if
(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on a different basis; or (ii) they are part of a group of
financial assets and/or financial liabilities that are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy;
or (iii) they contain embedded derivatives that would need
to be separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated as
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits and trade and other receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and
are not held for trading. They are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, except where
receivables are interest-free loans and without any fixed
repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
over the period to maturity. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated at this category
or not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in value
recognised as investment revaluation reserve within equity
until the assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of,
or until the assets are determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less
impairment loss.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase
in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired,
a cumulative loss comprising the difference between
its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously
recognised impairment loss in profit or loss, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition of
impairment loss is recognised in equity. Impairment loss
of available-for-sale debt instruments is reversed through
profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

0]

(m)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing borrowings. All financial
liabilities except for derivatives are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect
of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the
following bases:

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and title has been passed.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n)

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the commercial properties are let out and on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms while rental income
from car parks are recognised on an accrual basis.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is United States Dollar (“US$"”) and majority of its subsidiaries
have Renminbi (“RMB") as their functional currency. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b)  Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;
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(n)

(o)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

() All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

(d)  On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible asset, interest in associates, interest
in joint ventures and prepaid lease payments may be
impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as
income in profit or loss immediately.
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FTESTRRE) 3.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) EERK (g) Borrowing costs
WEE - EESNEEREREE Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
(FEE—RERMNMEGEES the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
HMTRSRNEEZEE)2H are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
BEEGEEKREK  ENRET production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
EEZERHEREWRZE 5 take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
EE AL W 1E B E B ERK A intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
Z—8Mn e B EEENE those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
A{EEBTHESEER % when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
EEERNAEGELEERE - use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
A HEMEER KRS AL expense in the period in which they are incurred.
MECER -

() #®EHES (r) Operating leases
BE 2B KE 0 & & E S Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
HHEARRBZHEE  BEA and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as
LEMEYR - 2EHECH operating leases. Rentals payable and receivables under
Y HEEMEEZHERA operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
NEHEENBRRER - 2& line basis over the lease term of the relevant lease. Lease
HMERZMPENBAERREY incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
TERHRETERASEERET integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
NREEFESNAK D - HFH of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
SRAIRBEE 2 GTHRENER as expenses in the accounting period in which they are
ABR incurred.

(s) BEHE (s) Government grants

B B AREESE
BREEEENBERERMmIE
B R BP PR 2 R

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(®)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from employee service in the current
period. Past service cost is measured as the change in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulted
from a plan amendment or curtailment and is recognised in
profit or loss. Interest expense for the period is determined
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting period
to the defined benefit liability. The discount rate is the yield
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have the currency and terms consistent with the
currency and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(®)

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(v)

Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group:

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Has control or joint control over the Group;

Has significant influence over the Group; or

Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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3. EEEWBEAE) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) BEBAL(E) (w) Related parties (Continued)
(b) fEfFE TFEIGREE - BD (b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
EREANERAE B following conditions applies: (Continued)
(#&)
(v) BEREAAEEKH (v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
REB BB 2B the benefit of employees of either the Group or
ot E B MRS an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
Z BEBkAE N G & itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
MAEERGER also related to the Group.
ZatEl - REE
ZEFIMEARE
R -
(viy EEX@F#AA (vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
I 42l 5k 2 A 4 person identified in (a).
il o
(vii) @) TR A L (vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
HERBEEATE influence over the entity or is a member of the
N EZE (% key management personnel of the entity (or of a

EENEAREE parent of the entity).

(vii) EfE- H—4HE = (viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
—EHEK D - I it is a part, provides key management personnel
HEBEREEAER services to the Group or to the parent of the
BT AREESAE Group.

EH)EAF]
HZ ATHERZINRENXE Close members of the family of a person are those family
xEﬁ:?E. R T EETS S members who may be expected to influence, or be
JEHAR R R B A T8 influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
Xuz(Aj:E/g HIKEERK B I B and include:
7=
(@) TmB/BATZFHZEEE (@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
REHE
(b) ZBALTZEBSKREEH- (b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
mHF: & and
() ZmBATHZBALZE () dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

BeREHEEMKSES © domestic partner.

ERBATHERT  BMERQ In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
AEEZBEE AR ZHE R subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
Al AERRBEZAE LA subsidiaries of the joint venture.

)= NI

REEIZERERA R
140 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



FAETSIRERMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. FEETHERE)

(x)

(y)

PEEE

BENRcRETAEETES
ERREERFOABRE 2
AR ARRBENEE
IR AR EE D BRI AT
EEC WY AR RERE
MEREEREKE -

BERMBHERAREHABEZK
REE

RAZEEMBHREEED - K
SEYREFHEATINELS
FHED A& OB R AF E R
ERB ] REERI BB
WEER MR -

BAUBREENAS  oMEENI6E
EERERE BETRELE
Z15RE%
B ERE 285
EReEBENE  REyEER
ERMBREENE IS LRGAERIMT
ZEHAERHEY
ERMBREENSAE  BAEAYEHLENRY
FERTARBEHET
BRAZIGREA I
ERMEREENS R AETAN
ERURREENE 158 KEEPANNE"
BEERRRERE  JELSRENE
ZE2)-RRENT
BAUERLEAAE  J5EE 00740
EEMERE
ARURELENZ 65 FEY
AE(ERERERE  AAREEY
288)-3n% FEEHY

EReiEAZ 185087 BELAkAS0A

ZREY
BRHBASEN PEERENENS
BORLE 7

FRUBRERNZ IS AEAHY

FRUBAEENZ 0 ALEEERL Y
RERGHENRBE  TALLGZEY
i | AEHE A

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who

are responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, have been

identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make

strategic decisions.

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current

year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15
HK(FRIC)-nt 22

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

HKFRS 16
HK(FRIC)-nt 23

Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKFRS 9
HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

2014:2016 Cycle: HKFRS 1 and HEAS 2817

Transters of Ivestment Property "

Clssification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions "

Anplying HKFRS 9 Financial nstruments with
HKIRS 4 Insurance Contracts "

Finandial nstruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers!”

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consioeration””

2015-2017 Cyee

Leases ™
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments ®!

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures”

Prepayment Features with Negatie
Compensation ™

Insurance Contracts

Sale or Contribution of Assets betiween an
Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

t Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

Bl Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

“l The effective date to be determined

Except for HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 16 as set out
below, the directors of the Company does not anticipate
that the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future
periods will have any material impact on the Group's
financial information.

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"). All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.

The expected impacts relate to the classification and
measurement and the impairment requirements are
summarised as follows:

Classification and measurement

The Group's cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables are currently classified as loan and receivables
and measured at amortised cost. The Group does not
expect the new guidance to affect the classification and
measurement of these financial assets.

The Group's equity securities and investment funds are
currently classified as available-for-sale financial assets and
will be reclassified to financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) or other comprehensive income (FVOCI),
which the Group is in the process of making the election.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future will not have significant impact on
the Group's net assets and total comprehensive income, but
will increase volatility in profit or loss in 2018.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9
may result in earlier recognition of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to
the impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by
the Group. However, management expects the effect would
not be significant.

HKFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective. The core
principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services.

Specifically, HKFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company preliminarily considers that
the performance obligations that may be identified under
HKFRS 15 are similar to the current identification of revenue
components under the Group's existing revenue recognition
policy developed under HKAS 18 and therefore, the
adoption of HKFRS 15 in the future will have no significant
impact on recognition of revenue. However, the application
of HKFRS 15 in future may result in more disclosures.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 significantly changes the lessee accounting by
replacing the dual model under HKAS 17 with a single
model which requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for the rights and obligations created by leases
unless the exemptions apply. Besides, among other changes,
it requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessees
and lessors. Based on the preliminary assessment, the
management is of the opinion that the leases of certain
properties by the Group which are currently classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17 will trigger the recognition
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in accordance
with HKFRS 16. In subsequent measurement, depreciation
(and, if applicable, impairment loss) and interest will be
recognised on the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities
respectively, of which the amount in total for each reporting
period is not expected to be significantly different from
the periodic operating lease expenses recognised under
HKAS 17. Apart from the effects as outlined above, it is not
expected that HKFRS 16 will have a material impact on the
future financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Group upon adoption.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

As set out in Note 46(b), at 31 December 2017, the total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases of the Group in respect of office premises
amounted to approximately RMB877,265,000. The
management of the Company does not expect the adoption
of HKFRS 16 as compared with the current accounting
policy would result in significant impact on the Group’s
financial performance but it is expected that the Group has
to separately recognise the interest expenses on the lease
liabilities and the depreciation expense on the right-of use
assets, and that certain portion of the future minimum
lease payments under the Group’s operating leases will
be required to be recognised in the Group's combined
statements of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities. The Group will also be required to re-
measure the lease liabilities upon the occurrence of certain
events such as a change in the lease term and recognise
the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liabilities
as an adjustment to the right-of-use assets. In addition,
payments for the principal portion of the lease liabilities
will be presented within financing activities in the Group’s
combined statements of cash flows.
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(a)

Change in presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"),
which is different from the presentation currency of United
States dollars ("US$") used in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Since most of the Group's transactions are denominated
and settled in RMB, the directors of the Company
considered that the change in presentation currency could
reduce the impact of any fluctuations in the exchange
rate of the US$ against the RMB, which is not due to the
operations and beyond the control of the Group, on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. It enables
the shareholders of the Company to have a more accurate
picture of the Group's financial performance. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company have determined the change
of presentation currency from US$ to RMB effective from 1
January 2017. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 1 January 2016
and 31 December 2016, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been restated accordingly to achieve
comparability with the current year.

As aforementioned, the consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is different from the
Company'’s functional currency of US$. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.
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4.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. Of these, the changes in accounting policy
relevant to the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

Amendments to HKAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The adoption of the amendments results in the additional
disclosures in note 39(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. In accordance with the transitional provisions
therein, the comparative information is not presented in the
first year of adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify, among others, how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at
fair value.

The application of these amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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4.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle: HKFRS 12 -
Clarification of the scope

The amendments clarify that except for the summarised
financial information for subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in which the interests are classified or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5, the requirements of HKFRS 12
apply to interests in entities within the scope of HKFRS 5.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

(i) Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred
taxes on land appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair
value of investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.
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(i)

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 15 and 45 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 2 and level 3 assets or
liabilities have been agreed with the management of the
Company. The management determined whether valuation
techniques and assumptions applied are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group. The estimation of fair value of
level 3 assets included some assumptions not supported by
observable market prices or rates. Change in assumption
could affect the reported fair value of the assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred tax assets

As at the end of the reporting period, deferred tax asset
of RMB27,782,000 (2076: RMBZ27,782,000) in relation to
unused tax losses had been recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The recognition of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are different from the original estimate, a
material recognition or reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, after taking into account the utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses, which would be recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which such estimate is changed.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected cash flows from
the CGU and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Details of
the estimates used to calculate the recoverable amount are
given in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REVENUE

The Group’s revenue represents the sale of goods at invoiced
value to customers, net of returns, discounts and value added tax,
and rental income from investment properties.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company’s
executive directors consider the business principally from a
product perspective which forms a basis for business segment
information as over 99% of the Group's revenue and business are
conducted in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business
reportable operating segments identified are instant noodles,
beverages, instant food and others. The segment of others
includes investment holding, properties investment for rental
purpose, logistics and supportive functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on profit for the year and the profit (loss) before taxation,
share of results of associates and joint ventures and unallocated
income (expenses), net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest in
associates and joint ventures and unallocated assets which include
available-for-sale financial assets. Segment liabilities include all
liabilities with the exception of employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than available-for-sale financial assets, are located in
the PRC.

No revenue from a single external customer amounted to 10% or
more of the Group's revenue.

REMEIZAR
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7. 2BER(E)

BR2017F N 2016F 12 A31B 2%

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information for the years ended 31 December 2017

ERINT - and 2016 is as follows:
EBIWIN Business segment analysis
2017
et

HERE FERR Inter-

Instant %  Instant Hft  segment B

noodles  Beverages food Others elimination Total

ABBTT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB'000
g Revenue
MIREP Y& Revenue from external customers 2,619,433 34752943 858,648 722,764 — 58,953,788
PR 2 Yz Inter-segment revenue 722 1,345 363 1,121,347 (1,123,777) —
AR Segment revenue 22,620,155 34,754,288 859,011 1,844,111 (1,123,777) 58,953,788
PREE(CHRHEER)  Segment result after finance costs 2,130,989 1,166,533 5682  (35738) 11,719 3,279,185
ERBENR Share of results of associates and
RENREE joint ventures 188 104,974 (3.982) - — 101,180
KABZFRA Unallocated income, net - — - 12,371 - 12,371
BB ARR (B8) Profit (Loss) before taxation 2,131,177 1,271,507 1,700 (23,367 11,719 3,392,736
i Taxation (640,633)  (427,135) (4,006) (65,594 —  (1,137,368)
KEE R (BE) Profit (Loss) for the year 1,490,544 844,372 (2306)  (88,961) 11,719 2,255,368
BE Assets
PEHEE Segment assets 19,867,771 28,311,010 886,653 8,267,381 (4,653,444) 52,679,371
BENAES Interest in associates — 119,320 1,248 - — 120,568
AANFIER Interest in joint ventures 188 613,027 47,476 - — 660,691
*PEEE Unallocated assets 638,526
BEE Total assets 54,099,156
8f Liabilities
AHaE Segment liabilties 8,637,330 15878922 357,836 11,896,646 (5,066,848) 31,703,886
FPRAE Unallocated liabilities 101,226
BeE Total liabilities 31,805,112

B EIERERAR
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7. SHERE) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
ERPWAIN(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2017
A
HERE HERR Inter-
Instant gi&®  Instant Hftr  segment &it
noodles Beverages food Others elimination Total
ANRETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB00  RMB000  RMB'000
HhER Other information
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 733276 2720806 47517 123,777 —  3,625376
BARY Capital expenditures 334,073 627,596 7310 364,881 — 1,333,860
FBBA Interest income 217,465 92,990 2439 25889  (67,997) 270,786
MBI Interest expenses 21,020 236,369 25 265451  (67,997) 454,868
REEE Impairment loss 69,518 154,503 - - — 22402
RETEIER
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7. 2BER(E)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

ER PN (E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2016
apiyat
aid i HEEM Inter-
Instant £ Instant Aft segment At
noodles  Beverages food Others  elimination Total
NEBFT ANREFT AREFT ANREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMBO00  RMBO0O  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB'000
(#E5)) (KE5) (HEF)) (KE5) (£E5)) (#EF))
(Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated) — (Restated)  (Restateq)
WE Revenue
MREF g Revenue from external customers 21,561,757 32,486,524 862,003 668,565 — 55,578,849
PR 2 s Inter-segment revenue 647 6,940 52,857 1,107,039 (1,167,483) -
D Segment revenue 21,562,404 32493464 914860 1,775,604 (1,167483) 55,578,849
PREE(CNRUEER)  Segment result after finance costs 1691810 751988  (34377)  (88,59) 4661 2325488
EEBENFR Share of results of associates and
RENAIEE joint ventures (100) 107,597  (33,352) — — 74,145
RABZFWA Unallocated income, net — — - 33,883 - 33,883
BHARR (58) Profit (Loss) before taxation 1,691,710 859,585 (67,729 (54,711) 4661  2,433516
i Taxation (521,185)  (478,907) (3812)  (47,549) —  (1,051,453)
KEE R (B8) Profit (Loss) for the year 1170525 380,678 (71,541)  (102,260) 4661 1,382,063
BE Assets
PEEE Segment assets 22,440,591 30,809,377 1,023,107 6,975,755  (6,206,364) 55,042,466
e N el Interest in associates — 172,713 (12,175) - — 160,538
RERTER Interest in joint ventures — 626,059 50,349 — — 676408
RAREE Unallocated assets 641,619
BEE Total assets 56,521,031
& Liabilities
HEHaE Segment liabilties 7125673 19271095 485088 11,403,247 (6,070,224) 32,214,879
RARAE Unallocated liabilities 205,573
BEE Total liabilities 32,420,452
B EIERERAR
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7. ABEME) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
EBoHoM(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2016
ME A
HEA FERM Inter-
Instant R Instant HH segment CE
noodles  Beverages food Others  elimination Total

ANREFT NRETFT ARETFT NREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB 000
(BE7)) (K7 (KE5) (KF5) (KEFF)) (KEF))
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated) — (Restated)  (Restated) — (Restated)

Hings Other information
WEREH Depreciation and amortisation 763,876 2,863,866 53,681 117,321 — 3,798,744
BARY Capital expenditures 220,535 1,116,487 8571 186,257 — 1,531,850
FIEHA Interest income 284,550 51,189 1,355 10,735  (129,651) 218,178
FEsH Interest expenses 29230 317,641 — 279,083 (129,651) 496,303
REBR Impairment loss 56,873 53,523 7,754 — — 118,150

8. Hfbzxs 8. OTHER REVENUE

2017 2016
AR FT AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 &%)
(Restated)
B WA Interest income 270,786 218,178

REMEIZAR
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9. HtFEBA(EA) 9. OTHER NET INCOME (EXPENSES)
2017 2016
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 &%)
(Restated)
HiiEmE & Technical consultancy fee — 76,849
& BE on 2 W Gain on sales of scrapped materials 145,319 143,725
HEMHEESHEE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
ZWEs financial assets 21,080 45,548
WEEFSHEARBEZEE) Change in fair value of investment properties 46,223 21,728
BAGKEEYENKEREZE Changein fair value of financial liabilities
BRESRBEZARE at fair value through profit or loss, net
HENFER 126,349 (64,614)
HERBAR 2 FlER Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 43,725 —
BT B Government grants 89,241 276,860
BT E —REE QT Gain on re-measurement of an associate to
RUEEAREY fair value at acquisition date (Note41)
Wz (Bt 41) 7,381 —
HEmE  WEREMER  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
B EMAELREEZEE  equipment and prepaid lease payment (15,337) (32,033)
M 5 18 K5 58 Exchange loss, net (6,619) (85,396)
Hith Others 262,364 106,464
719,726 489,131
10. BRBLATEF 10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
KB (GTA) T 3BE % - This is stated after charging (crediting):
2017 2016
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#=EZl)
(Restated)
B E M Finance costs
AR S FNABHEE ZIEIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
REMEFH 2 F BT T repayable within five years 421,627 496,618
AR 5 F LA _EBEEE 2 $R1T Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
MEMERZFESH repayable over five years 37,750 4,331
459,377 500,949
W FEHERMEHIA Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into property,
M - HEE R plant and equipment at weighted average
I E R xR capitalisation rate of 3.45% (2016: 2.86%)
$3.45% (2016: 2.86%) (4,509) (4,646)
454,868 496,303
B EERARA
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10. Bﬁﬁﬁmﬁ*u@%’?) 10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
2017 2016
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 EZ)
(Restated)
Hg g Other items

BTIRA(BIEEEMSE) «  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):

e K Salaries and wages 6,136,410 5,952,391

BRKRIEHE Termination benefits — 115,873

AR A E IR T Equity-settled share-based

2 FIE payment expenses 44,234 55,157

RIRERA Pension costs:

RERNKETE Defined contribution plans 611,476 662,627
FE A Defined benefit plans 11,715 30,144
ZEA S - Auditor’s remuneration:

EZER Audit fee 9,962 9,899
EEFERA Cost of inventories* 41,615,827 38,200,525
e Depreciation 3,513,679 3,676,512
0 490k (B 2 5 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 106,618 117,217
mEEEE Amortisation of intangible asset

(BEBRFERD ) (included in distribution costs) 5,079 5,015
M - WERRE Impairment loss of property,

BEEE(BER plant and equipment (included

HEmgEBERA) in other operating expenses) 224,021 118,150
BREYLEMRL Minimum lease payments in respect of

SEBENK operating lease charges for premises 412,579 412,222
AENRREEATBI 2 Compensation payment to employees of

BERR joint ventures and associates — 24,739
# EEFERAFEIZTARE # Cost of inventories includes RMB4,832,550,000 (2016:

4,832,550,0007C (2016 : A & B
3,951,415,0007C ) 81 8 T B K -
HTE - TR 182 B REE
EEF A B B A1 5 5 1% FE T
AR IR B A AR EE A o

amounts disclosed separately above.

RMB3,951,415,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation,
amortisation of prepaid lease payments and operating lease charges
of premises, which amount is also included in the respective total

REDBEIZAR
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11. EEREREEMS 11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
RNABESRITHREHT D WL EK The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or receivable by
ZBe@EEnT the Company's directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2017
$ER DRG %A
Hthie ZHE
EShe Salaries *4 Share-
Directors’ and other  Discretionary based &t
fees  emoluments bonuses payments Total

ARBTL  ARETT  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HITEE - Executive directors:
RN Wei Ing-Chou 1,366 7,045 1,550 = 9,961
HEE— Junichiro Ida 539 216 - — 755
RER Wu Chung-Yi 197 2 — - 24
R Teruo Nagano 337 108 — - 445
YR Wei Hong-Ming 337 1,584 144 - 2,065
BR=R Koji Shinohara 337 216 - - 553
WER Lin Chin-Tang 140 162 — - 302
BUFHTEE :  Indevendent non-executive directors:
fRERF Hsu Shin-Chun 337 108 - - 445
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 37 81 — - 418
REE Hiromu Fukada 337 108 - - 445
1TR## - Chiet executive officer:
BRE James Chun-Hsien Wei - 13,227 1457 9,951 24,635
4,264 22,882 3,151 9,951 40,248
REHELEN2017F8F4H & Mr. Wu Chung-Yi resigned as executive director of the Company
EARRBRMITES  MERLER with effect from 4 August 2017 and Mr. Lin Chin-Tang was
20178 H4REZERARAIH appointed as an executive director of the Company on 4 August
TEE o 2017.
BB RERA

162 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



FAETSIRERMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

11. EEREHEEMES(Z) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
2016
FERk DRH %A
Ethfie LA
EEiE Salaries bzl Share-
Directors’ andother  Discretionary based a&f
fees emoluments bonuses payments Total
ANRETFT ARETFT ARETFT AREFT ANRETT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
(#Z5)) (#Z5)) (#Z7)) (#Z5)) (#E5)
(Restateq) (Restated) (Restated) (Restateq) (Restated)
HITEE Executive directors:
BN Wei Ing-Chou 1,331 6,870 626 — 8,827
Hmg—55 Junichiro Ida 533 213 - - 746
R Wu Chung-Yi 333 53 - - 386
REEE Teruo Nagano 333 107 — — 440
BE4 Wei Hong-Ming 333 107 - — 440
I Koji Shinohara 333 213 - - 546
BUHNBTEE . Independent non-executive directors:
ThERF Hsu Shin-Chun 333 107 - - 440
FRE Lee Tiong-Hock 333 133 - - 466
iy Hiromu Fukada 333 107 — — 440
T - Chief executive officer:
ERE James Chun-Hsien Wei - 13,27 588 12,897 26,712
4,195 21,137 1,214 12,897 39,443

R2017FE K 2016512 A31 HIEE
B R E AR S -

AEERBERDFEETMALEH

MAMEREESMAREBIRN
M AERRERMIEHRE -

No directors have waived emoluments in respect of the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.
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11. EENEREEMES(£E) 11. DIRECTORS’' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include one director (2076: one director) and
the chief executive officer whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above and three individuals (2076: three).
Details of the emoluments of the remaining three individuals
(2016: three) are as follows:

AREBSUESFTALTEREIMNE
F(2016F 1l EF ) RITH A
HoOEMESHFBHEN EXKRIAMA
(20164 - 3{7) - H88301(2016
F3fp) N ZBEFBIT

2017 2016

AR¥ T ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(#&E3)

(Restated)

FehEMmNe Salaries and other emoluments 16,497 16,167
VAR 1 32 4 2 578 Share-based payments 9,190 9,380
TE4T Discretionary bonuses 1,970 1,849
27,657 27,396

Y30 (2016 4F - 3 )H&RESFHAL
2B 4AERImT

The emoluments were paid to the three (2076: three) highest paid
individuals as follows:

EEAE
Number of individuals

< 48 B Emoluments band 2017 2016
ANR#6,488,251 7t AR RMB6,488,251 to RMB6,920,800
6,920,8007¢ (7,500,00187C  (HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000)
%8,000,000/87T) — 1
AR#6,920,801 T2 AR¥  RMB6,920,801 to RMB7,353,350
7,353,350 (8,000,001 &7 (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000)
28,500,000 7T) 1 —
ANER#7,353,351 & AR RMB7,353,351 to RMB7,785,900
7,785,9007¢ (8,500,001  (HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000)
29,000,000/ 7T) 1 —
AER#9,948,651 T2 AR RMB9,948,651 to RMB10,381,200
10,381,2007¢ (11,500,001  (HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000)
JLZE 12,000,000/ 7T ) — 1
AR#10,381,201 T2 AR RMB10,381,201 to RMB10,813,750
10,813,7507t (12,000,001  (HK$12,000,001 to HK$12,500,000)
JLZ 12,500,000 7T) — 1
AR#12,543,951 L2 AR RMB12,543,951 to RMB12,976,500
12,976,5007¢ (14,500,0017%  (HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000)
JLZ 15,000,000/ 7C) 1 —

3 3
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12. BE 12. TAXATION
2017 2016
AR#FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 E3))
(Restated)
REERIE— Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax
PECEMER
NEE Current year 961,470 759,071
ARG (Z5H) D5t (Over) Under provision in prior year (4,179) 3,908
957,291 762,979
ELEBIR Deferred taxation
EERER 2 Origination and reversal of temporary
Ty =855 differences, net 49,243 192,028
RAREERPEZ Effect of withholding tax on the net
B8 2 R AT 55 AL )R distributable earnings of the Group's
FEEZ TART (KA 36) PRC subsidiaries (note 36) 130,834 96,446
180,077 288,474
NEERIABER Total tax charge for the year 1,137,368 1,051,453

REREBY NHARARANEEZ
WA B AT -

HRAEBZ ATIREBZE2017F &
2016 5F W 8 4 o] 5 8 7 45 B FE &R
A Bt R BEBSFEB G
RS -

REARE B RBIRENFED
XM ETEME B25%(2016
F25%)  RIEFFHE - BERASE
HERM G BB S B MR R
A E s 70 30 K 2 B G A A B U
RERERBE (B [2011]585%) -
iz 7 AR BB K B 7 B 3 ([ 7 3P b
EDHBEREEHEEENIIFRE
¥ HEPpEEEFLERAMLD
EERART0% A EH) - F£20114F
F2020FFE - BIE15% EEF
R EEMBH - Bt A5H
RS E 2B RARREAE15%
(20164 : 15%) »

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group’s
entities had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% (2076: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui
[2011] no. 58) on the Grand Development of Western Region
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration
of Taxation and China Customs, foreign investment enterprises
located in the western region of the PRC (the “Western Region”)
with principal revenue of over 70% generated from the
encouraged business activities are entitled to a preferential income
tax rate of 15% for 10 years from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2020. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries located in the Western
Region are entitled to an income tax rate of 15% (2076 15%).
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12. BIE(E) 12. TAXATION (Continued)
REBE 2R ANE N AR FZ T IE The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERM T - for the year as follows:
BEM Yk Reconciliation of tax expense
2017 2016
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(4€EZ))
(Restated)
B 35 B A Profit before taxation 3,392,736 2,433,516
BHRENEFERE 25% Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%

ZTRIE(20164F : 25%) in the PRC (2016: 25%) 848,184 608,379
JERHRE R AL AT Share of results of associates and joint ventures (25,295) (18,536)
TR Non-deductible expenses 185,940 271,312
mERBUA Tax exempt revenue (57,609) (88,423)
ANERBIEE 1B Unrecognised tax losses 173,651 236,092
REREHER Unrecognised temporary differences 5,055 (24,777)
RRBE W R TERTHIEEE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (58,591) (27,358)
BAEENHBZMEAR Effect of withholding tax on the distributable

AT B FIE 2 iR profits of the Group's PRC subsidiaries

(Hfit 36) (note 36) 130,834 96,446
SEEBEERY Effect of withholding tax on capital gain

TRt (AN IA arising from re-organisation of

group structure 28,000 —
P78 5 3 [ B Effect of tax relief on PRC subsidiaries

M A A2 BUURR in Western Region (30,542) (21,889)
AR E (Z5) D5HE#E  (Over) Under provision in prior years (4,179) 3,908
Hity Others (58,080) 16,299
REERHIA Tax expense for the year 1,137,368 1,051,453

BB RERA
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13. RE 13. DIVIDENDS
(@) ARABREAAFEESZIK (@) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
B the year:
2017 2016
AR¥ T ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 &%)
(Restated)
EEHZER 2 AHME  Final dividend proposed after the end of the
FREAEAR 2.49 /L reporting period of US2.49 cents
(2016 4F : &% (2016: US1.58 cents) per ordinary share
ZEAR 1.58 ) 909,539 580,849

=+

M2018F3 A20BHEE -
EEZREREREGHRES
A% 2.49 1l o FAE IR AR B A
B EBRMNFERRASERS
Wik - GRS AEZE 2018412
A3MAEFERNRBHEER - It
BERHRBENGE VB
KPR BEMRRE -

RARFRERREFBER £
—MBFEETARBBREZE

At a meeting held on 20 March 2018, the directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of US2.49
cents per ordinary share. The proposed dividend will
be accounted for as an appropriation of reserves in the
year ending 31 December 2018 if it is approved at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed final
dividend has not been recognised as dividend payables in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the

FRE year:
2017 2016
AR¥TFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#EEZ)
(Restated)
RZAF R R Final dividend in respect of the previous
AFRNIKEBR financial year, approved and paid during
BIEE RS the year, of US1.58 cents
RHERERR (2016 US2.29 cents) per ordinary share
1.58 %Al
(2016 F - &%
AR 2.29 M) 580,849 806,485
RENSIZAR
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14. B8R&F 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
UTAEREREN RS REEE The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is as
FzatE - follows:
(a) BREFREA (a) Basic earnings per share
2017 2016
(4 &%)
(Restated)
RNABIRRENEML  Profit attributable to ordinary
AN (ARETT) shareholders (RMB’000) 1,819,077 1,161,699
BETE@A 2N Weighted average number of
TR BT R ordinary shares ('000) 5,605,427 5,602,925
FRERGFI(ARES) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 32.45 20.73
(b) BREFEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
2017 2016
(4 E3l)
(Restated)
RATIRBEERE  Profit attributable to ordinary
B (AREFIT) equity shareholders (RMB'000) 1,819,077 1,161,699
TR K192 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(#:%)(F) (diluted) ('000)
EEITE R Ik
TR Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5,605,427 5,602,925
RA P B RERT &
B Effect of the Company’s share option scheme 5,337 504
BRETEEREE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
A2 AR for the purpose of calculating
hniE T diluted earnings per share 5,610,764 5,603,429
ishibe S yapl
(ARESD) Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 32.42 20.73

EEEERARAT
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15. REMFEHE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2017 2016
ARMTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 &%)
(Restated)

ARE At fair value
REH] At beginning of the year 1,060,000 1,003,200
NE —BEESZH Additions - subsequent expenditure — 35,072
HeE Disposal (223) —
NREzE Change in fair value 46,223 21,728
REEER At the end of the reporting period 1,106,000 1,060,000

—
Q
~

AEEZREUMFHERRER
RYERIFESAREEN T
WHEAEEHNAPELET

BI7TI% 2 A 5 168655 2 1678
5 o

AR BEFEMFERE

HEREUEEHENAABE
B REBENBRTIEREE
BERMGEMETHE  BE
EBEBYEXSERNMEER
BOAE BMEENBER
M ERLGABE - HE
B #Z L BOE R s B A MEA

(RERE)BHL - RfEES
EEIZER-RIE RS vA: ]

HEETS2ZE A HE N BAEE
BIFRE A RAGA B E
R BRTEE - EFA
AMERELEERDE2EME
Bl Bt 5% Hh [ A KE (L W) S R R PRy
S zEE - BEBRRGERD
FTEBEEEMEEBNET
EAEAREERA - EHEYE
NEBER  DENTERE
TRBAHBRAR -

(a

The Group’s investment properties, which consist of
commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective prepaid lease payments, are situated in No. 1686
and No. 1678 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai,
the PRC.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived at
using income capitalisation approach, or where appropriate,
direct comparison approach. In the valuation, the market
rentals of all lettable units of the commercial properties are
assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable
units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made
by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuer for
similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuer’s knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

REDBEIZAR
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15. REMEHEE)

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) AAEBEFEMTEREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
REBZEREEEMWEND L The fair value measurements for the Group's investment
BETEIEZEALBEWNE properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value
3MB RAFEEANREIER hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.
BEELBIS AR 3 There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.
EHAREHEHEMEBE T The following table gives information on significant
BR@AEZEWT : unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:
TARAGH SR
RERORIEZH EXTTHABLNZH AREENBER
REMEHE Valuation Significant Relationship of
Investment techniques and unobservable unobservable inputs
properties key input(s) input(s) to fair value
2017
BRANENEES
Commercial W E Rk
properties and Income capitalisation
Car parks approach
TERY
The key inputs are:
TR O [E = ZRIMESWABRL MERESS FANEHENLREESR L7
REBNAEMEEE SO eYREMEMENNTERE
e WA EER5.25% K% 4.50% AEATH® R4 -
Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account of An increase in the reversion
the capitalisation of the rental yield used would result in
derived from the existing tenancies a decrease in the
with due allowance for reversionary fair value of the
rental potential of the properties and investment properties, and vice
car parks of 5.25% and 4.50% versa.
respectively.
R BIERERA R
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15. REMEHEE)

(b) AARBEFFEMHEREGE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

FTABAGLNEHE

RERORIEZH EATTHIBSHNEZEH ARBENEE
REMEHE Valuation Significant Relationship of
Investment techniques and unobservable unobservable inputs
properties key input(s) input(s) to fair value
mi5AE BAYE
ZRIER  wHRERVEEYEER MANGAMSESEE LA
FZENERRE - Rk FE eeREMFHMEN DT EE
ATSEESITRRILEARNETYS EFLA RZIA-
ARARB198TEARK2827T °
Monthly market rent Commercial properties

Monthly market rents, taking
into account the time, location,
and individual factors such as
frontage and size, between the
comparable and the properties,
ranging from RMB198 to
RMB282 per square meter per
month on lettable area basis.

EES

ZRIGH  wERERYER
WmERS 2 EHENRE
mAARFE - BEFEEAL
BATSERITRARE 22T -

Car parks

Monthly market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties, of RMB722 per
unit for car park spaces.

An increase in the monthly
market rent used would result
in an increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

REDBEIZAR
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15. REMEMEE) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(b) AR EBEFEMTEREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
AU BRGHAE B R
RERORIEZH EATTHISHNEZEH AREEWBER
REMEHE Valuation Significant Relationship of
Investment techniques and unobservable unobservable inputs
properties key input(s) input(s) to fair value
2016
HRYENEES  KEENME
Commercial Income capitalisation
properties approach
and car parks
TERY
The key inputs are:
THHR B [E ZRIMESWABRL - MERESS FANEHENLREESR L7

RERNABENEERSOR
HEWHEETFER5.5% K4.5%
Reversion yield, taking into account of

EoREMEMENNTERE
AERTE  RZIA -
Reversion yield An increase in the reversion
the capitalisation of the rental yield used would result in
derived from the existing tenancies a decrease in the
with due allowance for reversionary fair value of the investment
rental potential of the properties and properties, and vice versa.
car parks of 5.5% and 4.5%

respectively.

EEMEERARAR

Mz AM

Monthly market rent
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BAYE

ERIER - A RE YRR
NEAG 2 RNERRER
maAkFE - §AMSEE
AR HRRESETIK

HAREI19I TEARK 278 »

Commercial properties

Monthly market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and

individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties, ranging from
RMB191 to RMB278 per square

meter per month on
lettable area basis.

FRMEATSHEEEE LT
SYREMFHENATER
AEREALI RZIA -

An increase in the monthly
market rent used would result
in an increase in the
fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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15. REMEHEE)

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) AR EBEFE=EMNTFEREAE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
TUBEAGHNERE
RERORIEZH EXTTHABLNZH AREEWBE

REMEHE Valuation Significant Relationship of
Investment techniques and unobservable unobservable inputs
properties key input(s) input(s) to fair value

BB

ZERIGE LR RE

WMERG EHENEZ -

mARRPE - BEFEA
BRAMSESITAARET00T -

Car parks

Monthly market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties, of RMB700 per
unit for car park spaces.

16. % - ERERRE 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
& B
Rt kit
KAgE Machinery Pectidl  HERE  EBIE
1 7 and  appliances  Miscellaneous  Construction =)
Freehold land Buldng  equipment andequipment equipment  in progress Total
AEETT  ARETT  AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFR
RIB000 RIB000 RIB 000 AIB000 RIB000 RIB000 AIB000
Wity (Wb
Notea) Note )
REEHR-82 Reconciliation of carrying amount -
016F12A31BLEE  yearended 31 December 2016
(BE7) (Restated)
RET] At beginning of year 103,089 8809724 21,804,172 98,282 1,530,295 269,012 35041574
RE Additions - 182,964 337,568 25951 410,911 488,778 1446172
RESEE Impairment logs (Aote ¢/ - - (118.150) - - - (118.150)
EnhER Transfer upon completion - 335330 808,669 2575 121765 (1,268,339) -
& Disposals - (16,799) (43,886) (3.037) (86,831) - (150,553)
Vil Depreciation - (529,056)  (2.270,286) (31,771) (845,399) - (3,676,512)
EREE Eichange differences 9,150 5,103 - - - - 14,053
REER At end of the reporting period 112,239 8781206 20,518,087 92,000 1,130,741 1916451 32,5%,784
REMEIZAR
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16. ¥  HERZEE) 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
EERRA
BERRE  FElectrical BERE  RRIE
KAEELH BT Machinery appliancesand Miscellaneous  Construction ait
Freehold land Building and equipment  equipment  equipment i progress Total

ARETE  AREFL  ARETR  ARETL  AREFT  ARETR  ARETE
RMB000 RMB00 RMB900 RMB000 RMB00 RMB000 RMB000
(Hia) (fiib)
(Note a) (Note b)

FEEHE-82 Reconciliation of carrying amount -

W17F12A31BLEE  yearended 31 December 2017

REN(EES)) At beginning of year (Restated) 12239 8787266 20,518,087 92,000 1130741 1916451 32,556,784
HE Additions 65,179 179,03 9,650 317,735 425,731 997,348
RE-WE-FWELT  Additions- acquiiion of a subsidary

(fi#41) (Note 41) - 4,887 2,03 788 35,251 - 102,959
RESRWE Impaiment loss (Ao ¢ - - (224.021) - - - (224.021)
EEs Transfer upon completion - 2,007 31,122 3833 45,526 (673,188) -
e Disposals - (22,788) (66,633) (2462) (78953) - (170,836)
HE-LENBLT Disposal - disposal of subsidiaries

(i) (Note4)) - (489,693)  (1,093,483) (1,683) (85,259) (66402)  (1,736,520)
& Depreciation - (518548)  (23642)) (31439  (721,265) - (3513679)
ENEE Buchange differences 1,148 1,039 (26) (1) - - 2,744
REER At end of the reporting period 1397 8138049 17,451,705 70,670 637776 160259 28014779

RO17E181B(8E5)  At1January 2017 (Restated)

FE Cost 112239 12578412 36,366,968 304,164 5,377,400 1,916,451 56,655,634
ZHIEARERR Accumulated depreciation and

impaiment losses —  (3,791146)  (15,848,881) (212,164) (4,246,659 —  (24,098,850)
FEFE Net carrying amount 112,239 8,787,206 20,518,087 92,000 1,130,741 1,916,451 32,556,784
R2017E12A318 At 31 December 2017
R Cost 113,987 12317100 3434757 298,737 5,199,758 1,602,592 53,879,754
ZHENRARR Accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (4,179,060)  (16,895,366) (228,067)  (4,561,982) — (25864975
RASE Net carrying amount 113,987 8,138,049 17,451,705 70,670 637,776 160259 28,014,779

BT EERERA T
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16. 1% - WBERRB(E

17.

TR E B AN S
bz

REER  AEEETHRENEE
BEREANEERFEERTZ
T3 FEE T R ES  IREDSE
“@rE A AR S51,379,0007T(2016
F: ARW57,772,0007T) - EF
R AEBEEEANRERE
LEFZERY) o

FA- AREHEHEBEMEITA
B RUER#ERENEES
2 A AR #224,021,0007C(2016
F: AKK118150,000C) B &
ERE o AN AR S EHE A
ELMBRREHE FTEEEEBT
AR E o St R Ea R EmEt

FR - FEARKEEBNE D E
mBSELSEM])NEERE
RIEAZE - BERKABEBERD
e e Rl B Rl (E - BB E T
TREES BEEEREELS
Uk cERAEFERERS
KIE - FIRFTHREREEEA -
BEEREENE  SARSEE
B {7 1) 7] Uy 01 & B = PO AE B A %
FEHREBE - Bt - BIRER
EOBLZE2017F12A318 EF
& R BB EEEN AR NE
HRE °

i 40EE

TR E RN BEIR AR AL
HET MR - ZRAIREEH#

REFERNRBEARNEERIFESR

A AR #104,748,0007T(2016 4 -
A E#107,301,0005T) 2 5t AFE S
RIE N E A Y GRIA -

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

17.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group's certain premises with aggregate net
carrying amount of RMB51,379,000 (2076: RMB57,772,000) have
not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of directors, the
Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.

During the year, certain individual machinery and equipment with
carrying amount of RMB224,021,000 (2076: RMB118,150,000)
were fully impaired due to prolonged period of being idle and
technical obsolescence. The Group has no plan to re-use these
machinery and equipment and all those assets are prepared to be
disposed of. The residue values of these machinery and equipment
were estimated to be nil.

During the year, the economic performances of certain products
(the "Cash Generating Units”) in Instant Noodles and Beverages
segments were worse than expected and therefore there was
an indication that the machinery and equipment of the related
products might be impaired. The management has performed
impairment review and the recoverable amount for each of the
Cash Generating Units has been determined based on value in use
model by using discounted cash flow projection. According to the
value in use calculation, the recoverable amount for each of the
Cash Generating Units is higher than the carrying amount of related
machinery and equipment. Therefore, the management determined
that no impairment of the Cash Generating Units containing the
machinery and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for leasehold land
in the PRC. The cost is amortised over the leasehold period. The
amount to be amortised within twelve months after the end
of the reporting period amounted to RMB104,748,000 (2076:
RMB107,301,000) and is included in prepayments and other
receivables.

REMEIZAR
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BREE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSET
BrREE
Concession right
2017 2016
AREFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4EEZ)
(Restated)
IREEHER Reconciliation of carrying amount
REH] At beginning of the year 179,179 172,404
5 Amortisation (5,079) (5,015)
PE 5 A% Exchange realignment (11,164) 11,790
REER At end of the reporting period 162,936 179,179
REEHR At end of the reporting period
B A Cost 191,122 204,038
Rt Accumulated amortisation (28,186) (24,859)
162,936 179,179

EILEERIENR2012F3 K46
HEMEEZHFITEEE - Firg
ERERTAREENEE £ 8
K DHERHEEASRERG RE
BRREBER  URERPBEAE
R EREMEERE - LEER
BEWNYIAZH39FE - BEKRE
FHiREE -

BVEERBRAEAGELZR
ERFHREETRERH -

REEIZERERA R
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The intangible asset represents a concession right acquired as
a result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty free basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Intangible asset is measured using cost model and is tested for
impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.
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19. HE 19. GOODWILL
RMB’000
RARREE Cost and carrying amount
R20165F 12 A31 B R
201791 H1H At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 —
WS —RM B AR (Mt 41) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 41) 97,910
M2017F12H831H At 31 December 2017 97,910

FEEANRER REREBMNEH
REERLBRATRHEALZER - K
KmisERMEEEEEROER S
BHMRENKE - EENETERE
BoRER BSEMTTEAH
MEFEENERFRE - BB
EBE A EMAER -

BEREERBXEFEEIEER
SERELEN(REELE
2 DETRER

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group’s
cash-generating unit (“CGU") identified according to the nature
of business as follows for impairment test:

2017 2016

AR¥FT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Ko Beverages 97,910 —

HEmEFELENEE((nE e
EAEM)IER2017F9 ANEAR
8 A K ¥ 183,690,000 7T Y B8 A1t )M
BEALEHRERARA(MMNESE
A )25% K B RETHE
BIFTRE41 R - FTEE R ERBIBATIK
BUBMNEERAZAGENAA
R¥97,910,000 Ly g H BB A F
BERERAEE - R2017F12 A 31
H AEEZ2EMMBEALNIR
enE BAFGESKHMBEEEES
MHAE SR - FTERAENE
S ENAFHYEEENES
METER - BBESFHNHREERED
KA MREIEREHE LR - &
g RESEANBBEMNITERERTE
Bl WA BAEEITENTARE
BREEK

Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Limited (“HZPS") at an
aggregate consideration of RMB183,690,000 in September
2017 as further detailed in note 41 below. The excess of the
consideration transferred over the acquisition-date fair values
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of
approximately RMB97,910,000 is recognised as goodwill. At 31
December 2017, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of
the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow projection
of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by the board of directors covering a
5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a 2% long-term growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry.

REMEIZAR
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19.

20.

& (&)

KmReELEMREEMREET
FwrEeRBEEKEE B
SR E IR BRI E

AR EEAEENEIZRRNE
NI

EHE 38%
TR R 5%
REERE 2%
UIEEES 9%

EEERBAERRLEY MG H
ROBHETHREENE - FAER
MHTIR R BT AT - 0 BR E AR 3R
TELBENARNSTRR -

B B KR I A B A AT
BeBE2 BRI ARAEEEL
TABEETMEBTREEERE
EHRTEH -

HEAR

MR2017F12A3MB T EHE A A
BRI A SRR M 49 o

BREEAMERRRNANEERALE
HABEES

EANHEMBRR

MR CHI R4 TRl AEEE
EOMMBEETELNBRER2%
EAZES% AEBERBREHRE
HHAALH  BBERTEERZ
([BEEHHED 2R RES -
MEEITERRIT Iz EEE(®
EEZ1) - AREMINE B0 LE R
BEAXENHBAEHHMMNES
MAEESEELHERTE A
HEBERBAEEHMMEEH
LEBEGIE - BB RRBEERR
20179 A1H  ZWERRKA
K’Eﬁlﬁﬁﬁfﬁ’“ﬂ CEH A
EE BMBREA -

BRMEZERERAA
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19.

20.

GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the
value-in-use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.

Key assumptions and inputs used for the value-in-use calculation
are as follows:

Gross profit margin 38%
Average growth rate 5%
Long-term growth rate 2%
Discount rate 9%

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company'’s
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 are shown in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Significant judgements and assumptions

As further detailed in note 41 below, the equity interest in
HZPS held by the Group increased from 25% to 50% and the
Group holds a majority of the voting rights of HZPS through the
execution of a sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA") and
an authorisation Letter (the “Authorisation Letter”) entered into
with another shareholder of HZPS. Since the relevant activities
which significantly affect HZPS's return are determined by the
board of directors of HZPS based on a simple majority vote, the
management concluded that the Group has control over HZPS and
this associate became a subsidiary of the Group from the effective
date of the Authorisation Letter on 1 September 2017. As a result,
HZPS is consolidated in these consolidated financial statements.
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20.

MEAR(E)

SEMNERIBERREZZHBLTN

MBER

TRINRASEE-FEBEERIH
PRREIEAOME AR - AN E KM
EERER - WM BERBMERR
NEPE R RIE R AT 28

20. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

material non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

inter-company eliminations.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

The following table shows the information relating to TAB,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material NCI. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before

M12A31H
At 31 December
2017 2016
DEMERIR 2 AL Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 27.09% 47.49%
DEESIR 2 W ERE L H] Proportion of NCI's voting rights 33% 50%
AR¥TFT ARBFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#Efs5T)
(Restated)
MENVEE Current assets 8,515,988 6,978,248
FErBEE Non-current assets 20,527,369 24,543,088
mEAE Current liabilities (13,034,715) (17,187,333)
EmBAEE Non-current liabilities (2,844,208) (1,996,953)
FHEE Net assets 13,164,434 12,337,050
VHERRRAREE Carrying amount of NC| 3,750,926 5,845,163
REDEIZER
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20. MBATEE)

BENEALBRRES ZHMELRH

20. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

BRER(E) material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) (Continued)
BZ12A31H
Year ended 31 December
2017 2016
AR¥FT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Cs=27),
(Restated)
W= Revenue 34,754,288 32,493,464
IE E R A Profit for the year 844,372 380,678
HEmzmls(EE) Other comprehensive income (loss) 96,114 (29,377)
ZHENRETE Total comprehensive income 940,486 351,301
DR EREE R T Profit attributable to NCI 418,376 204,406
DERERESEEEEIRE  Total comprehensive income
attributable to NCI 464,021 188,986
B ERRERRE Dividends paid to NCI (103,875) (78,224)
s (B) RensF8 Net cash flows from (used in):
LEES) Operating activities 3,525,921 4,434,687
BEEH Investing activities 302,813 (913,683)
BB R Financing activities (3,530,256) (1,824,023)
B EIERERA R
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20. BAR(E) 20. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FEEEMBARAMERERNEE

20179678 FEEN & &K AT R
LA #2818 A % 100,000,000 5T 4k
BREESEHEMERARKEE
EREBEBESEALHKEERA A
([EERAEEATLE ) EEIN30 % Rt
BYAREERKBEERERESE
AN EREZH36.76%EMNE
5251% - RIEE R KA F K
EPBEMLEI0%REMNERRE
B R EE AR®10,206,0007T -
Bt PERRERBADARE
42,134,000 7T * 2 % B4 a5 4 00
MeFEEINNRSREZHENE
% & A R #57,866,0007T ¢ i %
RIEIERIEZZSHHEE GRS
MEIRRARPEREZR - BRELR
B MRTAREKET EMER
mIERHMEEF QA o

M2017F12H » AEBEFRIRE
BREDZERBERTHRTEMNRR
BHE RETAEERS—ERE
201796 5308 K201794F11 A8
29B D RIET LW RESMNEE A + BASR
©HK1E611,884,000 €T (HHERH
A B #3,987,036,000 7T ) H) FE Al (&
HMERB BITRMN204% - B
REBETFEMERRZERSEBRR
REHE52.51 %IEINET2.91% ° KU
B 0 ERERAM (8 &R i AR 20.4 % x4
BARE(EE A AR 2,583,812,000
Lo At - LPEBREBEETHT A
R ¥2,583,812,0007T © 1 4 8 A%
REDZRSESHEEINNASHE
< Er =R/ ANRE1,403,224,000
T EET AT D H AR R E L 5 R
R e MR R ERA

Change in the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries

In July 2017, TAB acquired additional 30% equity interest in
Chengdu PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited (“CDPS”) and
Kunming Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited (“KMPS") at
an aggregate consideration of RMB100,000,000, resulting in
an increase in the Group’s effective equity interests in both
CDPS and KMPS from 36.76% to 52.51%. On the acquisition
date, total carrying amount of the 30% equity interests in CDPS
and KMPS amounted to RMB10,206,000 in deficit. As a result,
the NCI was decreased by RMB42,134,000, and the difference
of RMB57,866,000 between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests have increased and the cash consideration
paid was recorded in “Transactions with non-controlling interest
reserve” within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position. As a result of these acquisitions, both subsidiaries
become wholly-owned subsidiaries of TAB.

In December 2017, the Group, through the exercise of a
call option in accordance with an option agreement and a
supplementary agreement entered into by the Group and another
shareholder of TAB dated 30 June 2017 and 29 November 2017
respectively, acquired additional 20.4% of the issued shares in
TAB at a cash consideration of US$611,884,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,987,036,000), resulting in an increase in
the Group’s effective equity interests in TAB from 52.51% to
72.91%. The carrying amount of the 20.4% equity interest in TAB
on the date of acquisition was RMB2,583,812,000. As a result,
the NCI was decreased by RMB2,583,812,000, and the difference
of RMB1,403,224,000 between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests have decreased and the cash consideration
paid was recorded in “Transactions with non-controlling interest
reserve” within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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21, BN TRERS 21. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES
2017 2016
AR¥TFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#& &%)
(Restated)
JEETRS - RERANE Unlisted shares, at cost 96,696 149,357
FERIE B 2 4E Share of post-acquisition results 28,041 15,350
B U iEE B W T Dividend received since acquisition (4,169) (4,169)
120,568 160,538

REERBE QR ZAMAFIIT

Details of the associates at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
TEEE/
Eaiipchy
Principal AEERHER
place of BEREEEESILH
business FMBRA  Proportion of effective
BEATER and place of Registered  ownership interest ~ FTEEHK
Name of associates incorporation capital held by the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
MNBZEIERRBERAT HE US$10,400,000 — | 1312% HERHEESM
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
ERBEUESHBRAA h US$16,000,000  36.46% | 2625% EEREEHRM
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
B2 RRBERAR h US$8,850,000 49% 49% SHERHERR
Kongguan (Hangzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and
sales of candies
MER(LEB)BEERAR hE US$7,300,000 — 45% HENERBERAR
Wakodo (Shanghai) Trading Co., Ltd. * PRC Sales of milk product and
commodity for babies
# AR EE L R # English translation for identification purposes only.

WA R A B R R YR s D BR
BT BHRERT ©

BRMEZERERAA

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.
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21. BENTRR(E) 21. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
EBIEEAKE AT HEER Financial information of individually immaterial associates
TR RN EFIZERSEZRY 2@ The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and
RIFEEREE N RIMNAFTEREEK the Group's share of results of associates that are not individually
NEBE(FEELE - material and accounted for using the equity method.
R12A31H
At 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(AEEZ))
(Restated)
EHREE Carrying amount of interests 120,568 160,538
BZ12A31H
Year ended 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(AEEZ)
(Restated)
REEFE Group's share of:
AELHH (E5E) Profit (Loss) for the year 23,896 (36,550)
Hib 2 EES Other comprehensive income — —
FEE (FE) B3 Total comprehensive income (loss) 23,896 (36,550)
EEFRR AEEDREEMNERD In the opinion of the directors, no associates are individually
B nm] o material to the Group.
REMEIZAR
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22. S¥ATIER 22. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES
2017 2016
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(#5E3)
(Restated)
JEEMES - REAE Unlisted shares, at cost 472,812 472,812
FEML RSB 4B Share of post-acquisition results 408,523 331,239
B Uk EE 1 5 B2 AR R Dividend received since acquisition (220,644) (127,643)
660,691 676,408
REEREL AT ZRMAFEN T - Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
TERE/
Bk
Principal rEBEREZ
place of ERBEREERLA
operation/ MR Proportion of effective
EI-UNCEA ] Place of Registered  ownership interest ~ TEE£H
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital held by the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
RERYRMABRAR hE US$11,000,000  31.82% | 31.82% MIKEEERXER
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
FE (BN RRBERAH & US$24,000,000 60% 60% MIRHENBER
Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale
of meat products
LERETESHBRRA h US$28,120,000  36.46% | 2625% RiERIEESRSR
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
EEBEUESHERAR([EEEE]) +E RMB150,000,000  58.33% 42% BERHEERM
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. ("JNPS") ~ PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
IRE(LE)RHBERAR h US$7,000,000  32.81% | 23.62% MIKEERS
Kagome (Shanghai) Beverages Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of beverages
EREFREEBERAT il RMBA400,000 25% 25% Rt BRERKERS
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and
agency of advertising
LA EFrBA&E QAR DIREREY R All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
iR e M mES - method in the consolidated financial statements.
B EERERAR
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22,

REQREEE)

BEANHERBR

AEEFB—H2EMNBRAFER
E (EMN) RMBRAF6E0%HNERE
1 A REZE2EMNBLRRES
—REEZRANARWZE - HRERE
EIHAEEATENEEEBALHA
REE-TORE - Bt - AEERR
HZERTRAEHIRERA KR
il

rEEFA—HEEREEEAES
BONRAER ZIFZEHMABMER
RIM#HAEmM B E58.33% 2 BB
BigtEz o R - RIBZIERERE
MR R EE IR E E 2 HHE R
Z o HRERRAEERFENHERE
FARSERE LB BERAR
EEDHIBIO%MTEERIA— o
BEEHEN  AESETEEEFN
SEEENHOIMIZES  BLY
R EER A E BRI 5
REMEERRFABEZIEDER
BB ARMEMREENSE —BUR
T ARAEERAENEEOET
BB SIS RIS -

22,

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 60% voting rights in Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co.,
Ltd. through a wholly owned subsidiary. However, based on a
contractual agreement between the wholly owned subsidiary
and another investor, the relevant activities which significantly
affect the investee’s return require the unanimous consent of all
investors. Therefore, the Group determined that it has no control
but joint control over this entity.

The Group has 58.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
of JNPS. By virtue of the Group’s contractual right to appoint 4
out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.
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22. RELNRIER(E) 22. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
BRIEEAREGE QAR 2HBRER Financial information of individually immaterial joint
ventures
TRV RAEBIigiES E 2 ERI3E The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
BARELAAINAREELEAE Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually
EE(E A4S - material and accounted for using the equity method.
R12A31H
At 31 December
2017 2016
AR TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 ZE2))
(Restated)
R AREE Carrying amount of interests 660,691 676,408
BZ12A31H
Year ended 31 December
2017 2016
AR TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 ZE2))
(Restated)
NEEFEL Group's share of:
AFE WS Profit for the year 77.284 110,695
HAth 2 E W ER Other comprehensive income — —
FHEHR B Total comprehensive income 77,284 110,695
EERE ANEBEXAERBEARDN In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually
AT o material to the Group.
B EERERAR
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23. THHELSREE 23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
2017 2016
i3 ARMTFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(4 E3))
(Restated)
REES Investment funds (a), (b)
NRE At fair value 504,359 487,054
FELHRAFS Equity securities, unlisted (b)
NRE At fair value 110,722 130,757
FETRAES Equity securities, unlisted (c)
R1E At costs 25,678 26,188
B E 18 Impairment losses (2,233) (2,380)
23,445 23,808
638,526 641,619
et - Note:
(@) HEESARME0I6E - 19 (@  The investment funds represent investments in four (2076: four)

) EeZRE DR BKIINFH
SEEMAEREFAREE  KuR
EEHAEREFABEERKIN
RBERAEE((RBRLES DN
BOBREMEAR - LEEERA
SERBEESURABEERMER
BH) o AR¥E16,983,0007T(2076
F: ARK67,521,0007T ) EREF
NEBEWEEREES -

funds which were set up as limited partnership in the Cayman
Islands, limited partnership in Jersey and company with liability
limited by shares incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
"BVI") respectively, aiming at allocating idle funds reasonably and
increasing return on asset. During the year, RMB16,983,000 (2076:
RMB67,521,000) was paid to acquire the investment funds.
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23. AHHESHEEE)

Hist
(b)

(#)

REER  REESHRARBERIE
ITTRARERHBBESKRE
SEAEBAGE - DAEE

EERR R UET ARRIE
BEHERERN @BEAARE
95,396,000 7C(2016 FF « A K %
57,458,000) - HEE &N A AE
SERNAAZHEBERNTREZRR
BRI REAR A MG MR FE45 ©

BEIE EHEARFE ST ZFHERUK
RRER —EEREZEE B
BEEE BB EAnBEZE
BEEAEZmEHENSEMG
BERTESENE  BEFERR/FL
mHkEZ R BETERNEME
B AKERBHEFLI ETR
REFNER °

AfHESREEDATIEET

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

The fair values of the investment funds and unlisted equity
investments were valued by the respective investment managers or
trust administrator at the end of the reporting period. Changes in
fair value of RMB95,396,000 (2076: RMB57,458,000) were credited
to investment revaluation reserve. The valuation techniques and
significant inputs used in the measurement of the fair values of the
investment funds are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

These unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less impairment
loss at the end of each reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed. The directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably. The Group has no intention to dispose
of these unlisted equity securities.

The available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the

# : following currencies:

2017 2016

AR¥For ABRETFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

(& &%)
(Restated)

ETT us$ 621,690 624,855
AR RMB 5,000 5,000
ek New Taiwan dollar (“NTD") 10,362 10,193
) Others 1,474 1,571
638,526 641,619
B EERERAR
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24. HMFERBEE

MR2017F2R  A&EBEHE=TFTFH
R Bt AEBREBEUARKE
635,929,000 TR REBE MR RE
BW— R EREEY REER  Hpfh
RE—¥2T& AR 317,964,000 LE
1 EBREBREFBEERNENETE
¥REETAERRIN BFERLER
mEmEEF  FEHTREKR 201858 A
T AEEFNETERBEREAE
@ °

MR2017F12 8310 IRAFEHFORE
BAREE 317,964,000 T L8k A H 1 IE
MBNEE -

24. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

In February 2017, the Group entered into an agreement with a
third party vendor pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase
a commercial building located in Tianjin for a cash consideration
of RMB635,929,000, of which 50% deposit of the consideration
amounting to RMB317,964,000 was paid up to the end of the reporting
period and the remaining consideration will be paid when the vendor
transfers the legal title of the commercial building to the Group. The
commercial building is currently under construction by the vendor and
it is expected that the construction works will be completed and the
legal title of the commercial building will be transferred to the Group in
August 2018.

At 31 December 2017, the consideration of RMB317,964,000 paid to
the vendor was recorded as other non-current assets.

25. FE 25. INVENTORIES
2017 2016
ARETFTT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(4 E )
(Restated)
JRM Raw materials 1,027,595 1,127,420
E& G Work in progress 70,167 74,070
2K Finished goods 1,299,179 1,280,712
2,396,941 2,482,202
26. FEUBEZR 26. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
AR¥TT ABHTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&&E%l)
(Restated)
JE W AR =X Trade receivables

—%=% — From third parties 1,591,378 1,556,089

—ARRBIZEERR — From companies controlled by a substantial
z il 2 ZEAF shareholder of the Company 12,673 3,675
/NS — From associates 2,107 6,566
—a%na — From joint ventures 30,227 23,563
1,636,385 1,589,893
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26. EWERR (£) 26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
REB ZHEXRIH AED IR - The majority of the Group's sales are cash-on-delivery. The
BRTHEHEZEERFER3I0E0 remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
Ko BEAEWER(HNREERRE 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of
BEEBEE)RNEEAREZAHER impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts), based on invoice
ZERBOMAIRIT date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2017 2016
AR FTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#EZ)
(Restated)
0-90X 0 —90 days 1,517,678 1,460,298
90 A E Over 90 days 118,707 129,595
1,636,385 1,589,893
BIBHERBE 2 EURARREIRER The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired is as follows:
2017 2016
ARETFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#E3l)
(Restated)
EiEE Past due:
30 KA Within 30 days 98,074 113,397
31290K 31 -90 days 83,822 120,400
i 90K Over 90 days 44,699 52,740
226,595 286,537
ELIBHERRENEKESR 2 The trade receivables that are past due but not impaired related
KERNEBESLZLESBITLSNTE to a number of independent customers that have a good track
VYEF - ARESEVESE AMNE record with the Group. The Group has not impaired these debtors
v REFEWEYEELERGEE as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
HE WEEHEDR 5B LERT the directors believe that the amounts are recoverable. The Group
W Bl o 7N £ B 7 5k 35 A (T {a] B35 does not hold any collateral over these balances.
RPEREE IR -
3= L 3E %0 HA 8% 5k U5 (E 1Y JE UL BRE 204 Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to a
R~ = B R BN K BRS04 o wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.
JEUBER = ELAARKIIE - The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
EAEERERAT
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27. BNERREMEWRS 27. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017 2016

i3 ARMTFT ARBFT

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

(4 E3))
(Restated)

BIIER Prepayments to suppliers for purchase of

goods 170,648 30,875

BITERER Prepayments for purchase of equipment 9,929 26,260
BREETR Prepaid value-added taxes 632,636 586,466
BREERY Prepaid operating expenses 923,200 1,139,661
HHBOEERETH  Current portion of prepaid lease payments 17 104,748 107,301
EAER Loan receivables 27(a) 60,000 60,000
EBRE Debt investment 27(b) 900,000 —
FEURIHTB AR ZA Amount due from former subsidiaries 27(c) 1,347,253 —
FEl—HEEaEHIE Amount due from a subcontractor — 101,518
At Others 450,983 560,928
4,599,397 2,613,009

27(a) B ER

27(a) Loan receivables

EWERTEAEEZHE R
AERTEETREMEHER
HEELBERGBZHIE - Ib5E
ERERSEER AR —
FAEERWMFEH32%
£6.15%(2016%F: 3.92% =
6.15% )M E K -

ARREERHUZETHR
BEBRT _EARZHEK
O W FEREEERZDA
EBEEEAHEERERT -

27(b) BB IR E

BEHERERELASBEAARYE
900,000,000 JL AL 5 = 77 U
RIE REEARETFENEA
5.66% + EIRREHARRK =
BARER -

Loan receivables represent the advances made by wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials
suppliers of the Group for their operating use. The loan
receivables are unsecured, repayable within 12 months from
the date of the reporting period and bear interest ranging
from 3.92% to 6.15% (2016 from 3.92% to 6.15%) per
annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

27(b) Debt Investment

Debt investment represents receivable from an independent
third party company with an aggregate principal amount
RMB900,000,000, which is unsecured, carries a fixed
interest rate of 5.66% per annum and is expected to be
realised in the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.
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27. ERERREMEKRT(E) 27. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
27(c) EEWETH B A T &R IE 27(c) Amount due from former subsidiaries
AKX ENKRATHEDT The balance represents the advances made to four former
AmHEE EMESR TS subsidiaries namely CDTJ, MKKB, NCTJ and JMTJ as
B RSTPITE (8 T XM 42 defined in note 42 below. At the end of the reporting
FEIVNRE REEE > 2k period, the amounts due are unsecured, bearing interest
I 2 TE B E R N ranging from 3.91% to 4.70% per annum, out of which
AN S N/ B M=
RMB1,200,000,000 are repayable within four months and
391%EAT0% S - K AR o i
. o the remaining amount of RMB147,253,000 are repayable
#:1,200,000,000 7T Z 7B BT o
N ) within one year.
BMANERE MBTZARE
147,253,000 THRIERN —FAE
i% o
REEH BEZDH2EEBABRELZ The directors assessed the collectability of loan receivables, debt
B BRZEERIREERE investment and amount due from former subsidiaries at the end
Btk UETHERER  BBERER of the reporting period individually with reference to the debtors’
FEURIM B A B ZIER) AT YR [l 1 - k1B past collection history, current creditworthiness and subsequent
ERERIEERE  RETMEWER settlement record. No receivables were determined to be impaired
WRTABERE - EERA 0 GAD as a result of the assessment for both years. In the opinion of
S 78 o 77 U [B) 27 2 U 2R 0B 5 T S R P the directors, there was no indication of deterioration in the
S R 8 B S e I TE A collectability of the receivables and thus no provision had been
B o made for non-repayment of the amount dues.
28. HEeRZERHEEIER 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2017 2016
AR FT ABWEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#EE3l)
(Restated)
RITHEBRRRE Bank balances and cash 10,226,577 10,189,460
EHIRITHER Pledged bank deposits 58,312 42,352
REEHRESRERIIT As stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows 10,284,889 10,231,812
WITERE FHEM - EaEMiAs The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
BT RE DA (A ERTE trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
HEZHETIREZIERSD - bills, granted to the Group by banks.
R BIERERA R
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28. BA4RZEBELER(E) 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS(Continued)
HEEERIKRSBEHIUTY EES The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
B : currencies:

2017 2016
AR¥FT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(#=E )
(Restated)
AR RMB 9,578,395 8,933,103
ETT us$ 590,781 1,238,263
EL T EUR 4,264 4,631
et NTD 41,097 44,246
Efh Others 70,352 11,569
10,284,889 10,231,812
BEAEEZIINERR MEERR Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and credit risk
B4R E B IS IR M E 44 FFul - discussion are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.
29. BITRA 29. ISSUED CAPITAL
2017 2016
RER AER
Equivalent to Equivalent o
BUEE £ AREFI k%8 i AKEFT
No. of shares Uss o0 RMBD00  No. of shares Us§000 AIBO00
EE Authorised:
BR0.005FT Ordinary shares of US§0.005 each
LEER 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000
BETRAR - Issued and fully paic:
RER] At the beginning of the year 5,604,501,360 803 234,767 5,602,871,360 28,014 84710
REERETE Shares issued under share option scheme
A 8,728,000 ! 86 1630000 9 57
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,613,229,360 28,067 235,053 5,604,501,360 28023 234767

AR E R - 8,728,000 B IR & 1T
1# LA 22 B8 7K A 7] 8,728,000 & i A%
- BRERARY67,387,000
7T - B AR 286,000 TEF AR E
FTRRAS - A e A R 67,101,000
T AR GRER - 340 AR
21,357,000t B EFEEERS
BHRER ZSEREANSHHEE
RERMNEBRSEZ -

During the year, 8,728,000 options were exercised to subscribe
for 8,728,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of RMB67,387,000, of which RMB286,000 was credited to issued
capital and the balance of RMB67,101,000 was credited to the
share premium account. In addition, RMB21,357,000 has been
transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing
shares in all respects.
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30. RBE 30. SHARE PREMIUM

2017 2016

AR¥TFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(#&&E51)

(Restated)

NG At the beginning of the year 523,278 505,449
RIERERAE ST I 1T 2 A% 1D Shares issued under share option scheme 88,458 17,829
R&EER At the end of the reporting period 611,736 523,278

REMESE QRGN  ERF KAiE
BRERIRNDE  THEURREHE
A BT ERTRODEAEH
R BHERERMNEER

B aERZERRREMSHS
RAPELZITE e

ERAARERREZB/AT AR
Bl Z Bt B A B IR T CR - HEAR
RANDIKIRANBRNEEERR
XN 2B

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall

due in the ordinary course of business.
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31. & 31. RESERVES
BOHRR
ERTARE
Transactons REER  NEER
RABERE EREEE  wihnon- JBESRE  ERE GRE Bk
Copitdl ~ Remeasu-  contoling ~ Exchange  Investment~ Poperty k& Sharebased  FEEH
redemption ement inferests  translation  revaluation  revaluation General  payment  Retained a8
resenve resenve resenve resenve resenve resenve resenve resenve profits Total

ANEETL AREFL ARETT AREFT AREFL ARETT AREFT AREFL ARETT AREFR
AMBO00  AMBU0O  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUGO  RMBOO
(%7)  (485) (m&5) (mE5))  (gER))  (@E)  (gEp)  (BEA)  (MER)  (HE3)
(Restated) ~ (Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)

R20165151A At 1 January 2016 400 (12553)  1,017412 109,169 72,38 9869 3,340,835 38254 13164803 17,971,880
REFT Profitfor the year - - - - - - - — 1161699 1,161,699
A2E(EE S Other comprehensive (loss) income
REBHERZERE Remeasurement of defined
bengfits obligations - 83957 - - - - - - - 83,957
ENZE Exchange difference on consolidation - - - (564848) - - - - - (564,848)
AERELHEELLEZEY  Fairvalue changes in avallable-for-
sale finandial assets - - - - 57458 - - - - 57458
RERHETHNE Reclassifcation adjustment relating
SREEL o available-forsale financial
EREER assets disposed of during the year - - - - (55 - - - - (554
A2 ECRE(ER) Total other comprehensive
WEEE (Ioss) income - 83,957 - (564,848) 11,910 - - - - (468,981)

RERRH(BRMEEE Total comprehensive

(loss) income for the year - 83,957 - (564849) 11,910 - - = 1161699 692,718
BALARRZRS Transactions with owners
of the Company:
REEHT Contributions and ditrbution
BRLER A Fquity sttled share-based transactions - - - - - - - 55,157 - 55,157
REERE HE TR Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - - - - 4220 - 420
EhRigxi Share option lapsed - - - - - - - (3387) 3387 -
EHEREE 0 ERDRE 2015 final dividend approved and paid - - - - - - - — (306485 (806,485
ERERTER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - 30433 - (3043 -

230433 47550 (1033531 (795549)

AEEED Changes i ownership interests
ESYYSEHENNELT  Changes inownership inerest n
EREED subsidiares without change in control - - (8355 - - - - - - (4355
BALARFRHAE Total transactions with owners

of the Company - — (43555 - - - 230433 47550 (1,033531)  (1,299,103)
R2016512831A At 31 December 2016 400 (#1575 473857 (455,679) 84,292 9869 3571208 430092 13292971 17365495
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31. &E(E) 31. RESERVES (Continued)
EHURR
EERARE
Transactions REER  hEEH
RARERE EREEE  wihoor- JEEERE Eff ERE EhEaE
Capitl ~ Remeasur-  controlling  Exchange Investment  Propety  —REE Sharebased  RBEA
redemption ement  interests  translation  revaluation  revaluation General  payment  Retained &5
feseve  fesee  feserve  fesee feseve reseve feseve resenve profits Total
ARETL  ARBFE  AREFL  ARETR  AREFL  AREFT  ABETR  AREFL  AREFT  ARETR
RMBU0O  RMBUGO  RMBUGO  RMBUGO  RMBUGD  RMBUMY  RMBUMY  RMBUMY  RMBUN  RMBUN
HUNEIBIBEE) At January 200 estated) WM M USEY) WM 9 S B0 B 13545
KEEEH Profitforthe year - - - - - - - — 18190 181807
At2ERE(ER) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERHEF BRHE Remeasurement of defined
benefts obligations - 41,664 - - - - - - - 41,664
EXEE Exchange diference on consoldation - - - 2880 - - - - - 2380
THEESHERLAEZEE Fainvalue changes in avalable-for
sale financial assets = = = = 95,3% = = = = 95,39
RERHETHLE Redasficaton adjustment relting
HHEEZ to avallble-fors2le financial
Eny: assets disposed of during the year - - - - (21,080) - - - - (21,080)
Ef2EYE4E Total other comprehensive income - 1,664 - B0 74316 - - - - 399780
KEELANELE Total comprehensive
income for the year = 41,664 = 283,800 74316 = = = 181907 2218857
ERDARRLRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEAT Contrbutions and dlstrbution
EREERRTNE Equitysetled sare-based transactons - - - - - - - 1234 - 234
RERREERT R Shes ssed Under share opton scheme - - - - - - - (21.357) - (1.35)
B Share option apsed - - - - - - - (24852 8 -
R)EHR Put options writen to
RitmAGE a non-controling Shareholder - - 413510 - - - - - - (413510
ROgREsES Written back of financial liabilies
DEHERTE upon cancellation of put options
MHEEENLRER wiiten to a non-controling shareholder - - 413510 - - - - - - 413550
BIERER 0165 KRS 2016 finaldividend approved and paid - - - - - - - - (0849  (580,849)
ERaR2EH Tranfer from retaned profis - - - - - - 5% - (588259) -
= = = = = = 588,259 (1975)  (1,14425)  (557,972)
Changes in ownershpp iterests
Change in ownership interest
in subsidiares without change
n control - — (1,461,090 - - - - - - (1461,000)
EANIRRRAEE Total transactions with owners
of the Company = - (1461,000) = = = 588,259 (1975) (1144250 (2,01,062)
R0TENENA At 31 December 2017 400 89 (%87233)  (171819) 158,608 9869 4159527 8117 1397792 17565290

Hibzm(BE) K SEKRER &
2016 F R 2017 F IR BB HF

&Z@® .
=
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31.

REE)

Bt e f#

BhBECFEDIREREREZA
EEABEBEREHEARRRG 2

KM RAL ©

EfhERE

EfEFEDRES BB RF
RERMBEZEMRE  FBIR
KRB M BEHRERMEE3()

ROBRRESZRZHE

HOPRREEXZIREEDRES
APERBBEAEBHE QR NE
SE NGB REERMRL - &
BN ARG M KR EE 3(b) ©

¥ B 8 A2017F6H308 &
201711 298 W B RE 7 3 &
WrhE(EB BEERE D —
HREA BRI 2 IR AR R
(I3 DRAREETREBEN
FEARRNERZINEEMESR
214,718 % B 377 2 FRENE 8% R A%
BO(TZAHFR]D - MARR]IRE
ZABREROEENFEZ A EX
RAARBEZARR  E@%ZEH
BEMITEE®RRE THEENITES
PR 9 K IR HARE 17 3 0 2 I SR 7T ©
At - AL B EERRLAE
SR B fE ARK4135,120,0007T
MEME 2 ETET AR - 12017
F128  RRFRE EXWsE20#
—PHAZITERELRE  mMAS
BB 0 R & mIERE R
BEEA5251% EFAET291% ° [
It - ROA B RN EUE AR B &
Ehe & AR 4,135,120,000 7T
hiE o

SNEBRE B

SNEE R B 2 RN BRI TR IR
ARREBRBINERE 2 GFTER -
FHIBEIIRRER A MK MG 3(n) ©

31.

RESERVES (Continued)

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in a loss of control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with an option agreement and a supplementary
agreement dated 30 June 2017 and 29 November 2017
(collectively the “Option Agreements”), a non-controlling
shareholder of TAB (the “Party”) granted to the Company a call
option to require the Party to sell 214,718 issued shares of TAB (the
“Party-Held Shares”) to the Company and the Company granted
to the Party a put option to require the Company to purchase
from the Party the Party-Held Shares at a fixed exercise price
within certain specified exercisable periods in accordance with the
terms of the Option Agreements. Accordingly, a financial liability
under put option of RMB4,135,120,000 was recognised at the
grant date with the corresponding debited to equity. In December
2017, the Company exercised the call option as further detailed
in note 20 above and the effective equity interest in TAB held
by the Group increased from 52.51% to 72.91%. Therefore, a
written back of financial liability of RMB4,135,120,000 was made
immediately upon cancellation of put option written to the Party.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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31.

32.

REGE)

REEMGERE

REEHERBIRESTESR
MALENEREEAAEE
MR FH B RN &G M #RE
BIEE3(k) °

MEELERE

ZOEEHERENRIRATE
BEHWERLHEANEECEGHR
ek ER WIRBEHMOME  #
BEREE BRRNRAETBEREW T
3(d) RI = ETHCR ©

— KA

RETFEBERG - FEKERA
AR —E T DRERRB RN (R
FREEARIIGREEETENMNER
BlZEERBAZSN)10%ZHKE
ERE-REG W RERZR
BREARATENBARZEMERERZ

50% B+ 32 A ) A /B BRI A8
%0
BRERE

BREFEGEEETAKEEER
HMARTEZBRERNFZLARZA
REZ®BD  XREBESFTEAEH
AR mER Z N FREE - 71551
RIRNER A B AR MR 3(u) ©

UESEEROXIGT2RE

B EREMERESE(RED
ZRFBEEEN2008F3 42088
e ZErEl B E2EE (G
T ) W R P G AR EE
BER o
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31.

32.

RESERVES (Continued)

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
changes of fair value in available-for-sale financial assets as set out
in note 3(k) to the consolidated financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties and
prepaid lease payment in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for property, plant and equipment as set out in note 3(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(u) to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 March 2008. The Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants (as defined
below) had or may have made to the Group.
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32. UREREERBZNZRE(E) 32. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

EEQRIREEZERTUTALE

A% -

(i) N E B A B R ] 2 B
&%Hﬁ% EE  TTHRABES&EH
=

(i) ARAREMBARNEFNES
(BREETE R KB IFTT
E5): &

(iif) “ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁ%’&ﬂﬂ@&ﬁ%ﬁ

Ea uﬁ]% 'f#\FEEF:ﬁ ’ EE?Z\&
fti% °
RSN BB E - Zat &8 R

ARG HERETEIMET 2
EhiErR2RMDEE TEBRAAR
DRI ET 2 E B (812008 F
3H20B) 2 E&ETRHH10% °
Wﬁ:aia CERTHEERESHN
48 B I M 5 143,726,500% (2016
fﬁ:732,306,500/i€) ROV NN
R BERRE TERETSE
H2ZEBTRMDA2.57% (20164 -
2.36%) °

BER2EEEZERAEBERE
TAZENESRTRE(BEDT
ERARITEZBRE)  EEFRT
ez 12 ATFEBERTH
Hﬂﬁa%ﬁ%@ﬂM% ° ZM1% &
REVH /AR A AR AL

(Continued)

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option to:-

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue at the time the Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20 March
2008). At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2016: 132,306,500), representing
2.57% (2016: 2.36 %) of the shares of the Company in issue at the
time the Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised
and outstanding options) to an individual in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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32. UREREERBIZNZRE(E) 32. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)
THEEBHRHESENESRRTE  MIT The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board of
FEEBEHENLDRORDEBERERT Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
BB TS A W& ¢ (i) R (D 7E price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
BN ER T H RS A2 % B REBERT AT average closing price of the shares for the five business days
BSE U THE R Gi) RO HEES immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
ZESEE - value of the Company’s shares.
EREAZNTEEHARAEST 2R The period during which an option may be exercised will be
FTOMBREZITFERATZRET determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that no
BZ10F - ERREBNRIETHESE option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
B AEEEIEEE T ERNKRE granted. The options will be vested either after five years from the
HBEVEGRRE - SEREEEET date of grant or immediate upon attainment of the retirement
Z2E—HEREE T REE A age as specified in the Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1
Lo T—RBIRERTEHERES L is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option granted.
BANT]— R E@BIEHREF] o Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
EETFTAATIRENBATIZEE Details of share options granted by the Company to the employees
MEE EREFBERER2017TER and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the
2016 F 12 A3THFERN 2 EE M0 Scheme and the share options outstanding as at 31 December
T 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
il
IRESE
Number of RITENEREZR
RFBEH share options Number of share TEE TR
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price  Exercisable period
2017 2016 HK$

2008437208 11,760,000 2,300,000 4,564,000 9.28 2013%3A21HZ
20 March 2008 201843 H20H

21 March 2013 to

20 March 2018
2009F4 H22H 26,688,000 6,961,000 12,700,000 938 2014F4H23BZ=
22 April 2009 20194 H22H

23 April 2014 to

22 April 2019
20104 A1H 15,044,000 10,003,000 11,851,000 18.57 2015F4A818=
1 April 2010 202093 H31H
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32. UREREERDXTZRE(E) 32. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)
OIS F R ESEE RN 2017ER Details of share options granted by the Company to the employees
2016 F 12 A3MBFEARAZE SN and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the
T (&) Scheme and the share options outstanding as at 31 December

2017 and 2016 are as follows: (Continued)

il
REHE
Number of RITENERERE
®FBH share options Number of share TEE TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price  Exercisable period
2017 2016 HK$
2011 F4 4128 17,702,000 12,210,000 14,958,000 19.96 2016F4°128=
12 April 2011 20214 H118
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
2012F 4 A26H 9,700,000 7,456,000 8,898,000 20.54 2017F4H268 =
26 April 2012 2022F4H25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
20139 5H27H 11,492,000 10,100,000 10,256,000 20.16 2018F5H27HZE
27 May 2013 20234 5H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
2014F 44178 12,718,500 11,342,000 11,744,000 2238 2019F4H178%
17 April 2014 2024F4H16H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
2015F 6 A5H 17,054,000 15,820,000 16,434,000 16.22 2020F6ASHZE
5 June 2015 2025F6 H4H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
2016%F7 A4R 10,148,000 9,423,000 10,148,000 754 2021467R4R=%
4 July 2016 2026F7H3H
4 July 2021 to
3 July 2026
20174F4H218 11,420,000 11,270,000 — 1020 2022%F4H218%
21 April 2017 20274 H20H
21 April 2022 to
20 April 2027
as 143,726,500 96,885,000 101,553,000
Total
REMEIZAR
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32. LIEREEROZINZRE(E) 32. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)
MARTEZERELE NEEST Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
BB Z#&nT : weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
2017 2016
hn#EF 5 InxE ¥ 15
THEE T8
Weighted Weighted
average HBREZRE average MEREZE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REH] At the beginning of year 16.50 101,553 17.36 94,351
RERITEE Exercised during the year 9.20 (8,728) 9.36 (1,630)
R AE I Forfeited during the year 17.88 (1,322) 17.64 (806)
RERKK Lapsed during the year 19.67 (6,038) 19.34 (510)
RERE Granted during the year 10.20 11,420 7.54 10,148
REER At the end of the
reporting period 16.20 96,885 16.50 101,553
R R ERTEEIRES D The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share
ETPRE B 13.658 (20164 - options exercised during the year was HK$13.65 (2076: HK$9.53).
9537 ) IEEEHKN BEHF4 The number of share options vested during the reporting period
i 14 9 B8 AR 7 AR 202 10,111,000 was 10,111,000 (2076: 7,850,000).
(2016 4F : 7,850,000) °
MR2017% 128318 @ Mk {F8E The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had a weighted
PRER INE T4 T4 48 4550 average remaining contractual life of 5.50 years (2076: 5.62
FE(20164F 5624 ) AEEH - years). At the end of the reporting period, the number of
A 47 {85 B A% 48 19 3% 202 54,037,000 exercisable options was 54,037,000 (2076: 58,686,000) with
(2016 4F : 58 686,000) » A #* & weighted average exercise price of HK$17.66 (2016: HK$16.54).

H » G771 8758 A 1 7Y I 4 F 1577
1B 51766 L(20164 : 16.54
L) e
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32.

32. UREREERBZNZRE(E) EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

(Continued)

BRERTEAZAAEBDNRERE
RZGERRANRE - A ZAABEK
REBEABTE RAXIFELIR
BEROERXMARABAEEXZR

The fair value of the share options granted is measured at the
date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions of the share-based
arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently subjective and

B ARBEZFEAEBETEET uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the
T TEEREBEALEEREFERZ model used. The inputs into the model are as follows:
RO :
B¥H &¥H
ZRAAE 2B E
gk/Er SR/ Bx TEER SEBRER AEREX
Fairvalue  Shareprice =~ &R/ /%% ZFE  FEHRE BHTES  Expected

BFHH atgrantdate atgrantdate Exercise pricc  Risk-free  Expected  Expected  dividend
Grant date HKS$/share HKS$/share HK$/share interestrate  volatility life yield
200843 A20H 3.74 8.55 9.28 4.37% 40% 106 2.0%
20 March 2008 10 years
2009F4H22H 334 9.37 9.38 2.51% 36% 1046 2.0%
22 April 2009 10 years
2010F4AH18 7.24 18.42 18.57 4.10% 33% 104 2.0%
1 April 2010 10 years
2011647128 761 19.96 19.96 4.30% 31% 106 2.0%
12 April 2011 10 years
2012426 H 7.75 20.54 20.54 4.21% 34% 104 2.0%
26 April 2012 10 years
2013 5H27H 717 20.05 20.16 4.12% 26% 1046 1.5%
27 May 2013 10 years
2014 4R178 8.30 22.35 2238 4.93% 29% 1046 2.0%
17 April 2014 10 years
201566 HA5H 4.90 15.92 16.22 4.00% 25% 106 2.0%
5 June 2015 10 years
201657 4R 247 7.54 7.54 3.52% 30% 104 2.5%
4 July 2016 10 years
2017547218 328 10.20 10.20 3.46% 28% 104 2.3%
21 April 2017 10 years

BFHREISEBE - FHEAQF
Befn Wi E R AR IR - sTEBR
BARERERZEHZRBRRIE
EEEHEZMEE -

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the last one year of
share option granted. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate.
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33. MAABEVERKEESZEEE  33. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

NEmas PROFIT OR LOSS
2017 2016
Wi AREFT | AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(4% &%)
(Restated)
TRAE-EN Financial liabilities - Contingent
RERE consideration payable 41 (5,258) —
EHMEE (BF) - Financial asset (liabilities) -
FIEEREFITAN Derivatives not designated as
FTETEH hedging instruments 33(a)
M ZE 1 HY Interest rate swap (“IRS") 1,545 466
R X EHEF| %42 B Cross currency interest rate swaps (“CCS") (38,993) (153,116)
(37,448) (152,650)
(42,706) (152,650)
W WO B RIS
BEZD Less: Amount classified as non-current portion 5,258 152,650
mENER D Current portion (37,448) —
33(a) FEEERHHIANITETIA 33(a) Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
mHEHE B R K E ECS The notional principal amount of the outstanding CCS and
MIRSH) R E € % o 7l IRS at the end of the reporting period was US$160,803,000
/160,803,000% & A and US$80,000,000 respectively. The maturities of the
80,000,000 T » STHET AR derivatives are expiring within one year at the end of the
FEHIREEE B RIFA - reporting period. The objective of these derivatives entered
AEBEFZEETATAME into by the Group is to mitigate the foreign exchange
B ERE A RFETHARE and interest rate exposure arising from the RMB Notes
ZHE(AWE34FER)EED (as defined in note 34) issued by the Company but do
SNEFF R ARk O - BREF not qualify for hedge accounting and their corresponding
AR TEMNTER  MHARE changes in fair values have been recognised in profit or loss.
MAREBEEHCEERETRE During the year, gain on change in fair value of CCS and IRS
R AFERAEHBEHEAAR arrangements in an aggregate amount of RMB125,917,000
# 125,917,000 (2016 F - (2016 loss of RMB64,614,000) was credited/charged to
A R #64,614,0007C 2 #5 %) profit or loss.

HICCSHIRSZHERM A 2 BE
FERZEFT A RRIEES -

BRAERAREEIRES The valuation techniques and significant inputs used in the
MEENGHERMMEZRA measurement of the financial liabilities at fair value through
FITRRER A B RS AR R 5E 45 - profit or loss are set out in note 45 to the consolidated

financial statements.

REEIZERERA R
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34. EEEE 34. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
2017 2016
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#c=E51)
(Restated)
|ITEN Bank loans:
R Secured 732,679 635,000
A Unsecured 12,457,870 9,739,388
13,190,549 10,374,388
EARRR Unsecured notes 1,193,724 5,669,548
14,384,273 16,043,936
EREE - The maturity of the interest-bearing
B E borrowings is as follows:
1FER Within one year 7,775,320 9,163,746
F2F In the second year 3,506,766 2,454,080
FEIFEESF In the third to fifth years, inclusive 2,635,937 3,983,876
(BIEERE2F)
AFUE Over five years 466,250 442,234
14,384,273 16,043,936
WoEAMSEEBESMN Portion classified as current liabilities (7,775,320) (9,163,746)
JEREE D Non-current portion 6,608,953 6,880,190
RIBEE W HTE] R Analysis of the amount due based on scheduled
BEfZ EIHEAD T payment dates set out in the loan agreements
(A 2B iR E ok (ignoring the effect of any repayment on
BB EE IR E) demand clause) is as follow:
1FER Within one year 6,773,720 8,469,196
F2F In the second year 4,508,366 2,454,079
FIFEFSHF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BiEER2F) 2,635,937 4,678,429
AFUE Over five years 466,250 442,232
14,384,273 16,043,936
mETSI2R
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34.

BREE(E)

BEBEEEH ARKA4,178,790,0007T
(2016 %F : A & #1,379,272,0007T )
BE—GKEEKRLETEEAER
ERBEMBAKINTZEAB
MEWMBERT  ERKREERE - &
EESUWITEREEASITHELRE
MEREE HHEEBENTEREAR
MENEE °

n#E ¥ FREE371%(2016
F:305%)

BEBERBHERAIR -

RITHERERPOERYBERE TR
HOEE WS ERERAE T AR YR (E
T & D Bl A% A R ®1,106,000,000
7T AR #657,003,0007T & A R #
1,593,667,000 75(2016 : 7 RIAARE
1,060,000,000 7T * A R # 672,387,000
TN AR 1,784,209,0007T) © B B
IR E R EIE R TR AR A AR
BT 2 IR RAARK o UL ERIKIRIR
TEFBZENEEERE XN ERE
HERE o

BRMEZERERAA
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34.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB4,178,790,000 (2076.
RMB1,379,272,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
repayment.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 3.71% (20716: 3.05 %)) per annum.

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

The Group's secured bank loans are pledged by certain investment
properties, property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
with net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,106,000,000,
RMB657,003,000 and RMB1,593,667,000 (2076: RMB1,060,000,000,
RMB672,387,000 and RMB1,784,209,000 respectively) respectively.
The unsecured bank loans are not pledged and certain of the
unsecured bank loans are covered by several cross guarantee
arrangements amongst the Group's entities.
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34.

BREE(E)

20158 A6 H & 1 A # 17
1,000,000 oooﬁAEﬁ%Zﬁ}Eﬁﬁ%
BIARBZEE®])  -REER -
%EZEEEEZ%AE%%&ZM,OOO
TL(2016F - A K #995,313,000
o) WBER—FN2016F : &
ZHE)ZBERBEAN ARBEER
EEFFEFEBA4375%E R E
20158 H6 R E - (N EBH
ABE2016F8 A6 HRAMEFHS A
68 ' WH2018F 8 A6 HEIH -

ARBEBERITINEESFZZMBR
RALET - ARBEEBREZ20175F
1AM BRETSHRENA R EE
A AN R 999,330,000 7T(2076 4 -
A B #991,050,000C) - ANRHEZE
BARATMERFZAEEMIRE
EAREERRGEEETZERE
AL o

ARARR2012F6 A20H 81T 2E
BIETEB DRI MBEELRZS
FTERAR LT RBEBR - =
TEECIHE  AFECREELRS
AR 3,383,600,000 7T °

TRBBNETERZY S
ﬁEfﬂéEEIK%I%@J%TrEﬂ%
ML T - NRANEEE R R
EFANRERANERREE -

ks

AEETEHETHBTELRYN
A& 'E?ﬁ,’ﬂ’?%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ,\ﬂﬂ’]@
REREXR U TRASENEEEE

a@ﬂ;ﬁt* O #HEﬂ'aéﬁﬁéé“émm
FHER - AEEHRBMRERE
BrE—-FLHBEHINGE T B R
KWiEdd4 REEBHRN LEBE
REBEDREEMENZY (2016
F - E) o

34.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

On 6 August 2015, the Company issued unsecured notes with
an aggregate principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 (the “RMB
Notes"”). The carrying amount of the RMB Notes at the end of
reporting period is RMB998,244,000 (2016: RMB995,313,000)
and is included in the interest-bearing borrowings with maturity
within one year (2016: in the second year). The RMB Notes bear
interest from 6 August 2015 at the rate of 4.375% per annum,
payable annually in arrear on 6 August in each year, commencing
on 6 August 2016 and will mature on 6 August 2018.

The RMB Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The fair value of the RMB Notes as at 31
December 2017, based on the quoted market price, was
RMB999,330,000 (2076: RMB 991,050,000) respectively. The
RMB Notes are the unsecured obligations of the Company and
they rank at least equally with other present and future unsecured
and unsubordinated obligations.

The notes issued by the Company on 20 June 2012 (the “US$
Notes”) was listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. During the reporting period, the US$ Notes were matured
and the principal amount of RMB3,383,600,000 were fully repaid.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2076: None).
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34, BEEEE(E) 34. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)
AEBZBERE S 2 ATERER An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group's total
B2AWIRET - borrowings by type are as follows:

2017 2016
AR%FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(45 E2)
(Restated)
[E] 7E A & At fixed rates 1,543,724 5,789,548
FERE At floating rates 12,840,549 10,254,388
14,384,273 16,043,936
BEBENUTIE®E The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:
2017 2016
ARH¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#5E%1)
(Restated)
AR RMB 4,479,953 4,435,940
e us$ 9,904,320 11,607,996
14,384,273 16,043,936
B A& B HNE R f K B 2 & B f i Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
HEE - NEE U BEmERMT44 discussion are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
?ﬁl ° statements.

35. BEIRAEMR 35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
REMNEE Defined contribution plans
ZKE EAMERE  FELEEE The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
BE2N5RB+PE EERAES by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
75 BURT 48 A ) ROE G & o B Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
IAEBTETARLSHEIZES respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
FEGECETAEDIELMHRK - K contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
SEBRIMN LT AMHEKIN T portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
Z\E,\ﬁﬁﬂPl EERBER to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the

RIKE R E B ZEH - payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.

B EERARA
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35.

BIRAERE)

35.

RERMEE

AEENBABEGERERMHATE
TG - NREBERBRIFEME
BEENAEMB RN
A - BAETERIARE RBFH
k&6 EANTFHOHEREN - K
SEEATRMNFENEETRHE
VIEEMEAEEEREED AR
(TXPHEEEUDAE - & 2B
B hERXAHEEENN2017F
12 A 31 B ATERT BAL AR R AR HE
1T

AEBHEAERMABIFEEZ
BEW R ALRA P HR N KR ZFR

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group has not maintained any plan asset and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers
Watson"”). The latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2017 using the projected unit
credit method.

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its

REREBEZZEIHET : defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2017 2016
AR®FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#& &%)
(Restated)
REH] At beginning of year 205,573 278,569
RFE R A Current service cost 6,210 22,275
FE KA Interest expense 5,505 7,869
11,715 30,144
HHE Remeasurements:
VB REFAREE L Actuarial gains arising from changes
BE W in financial assumptions (44,935) (41,513)
KERRHEEEZ Actuarial gains arising from
TEE s experience adjustments (7,102) (73,379)
(52,037) (114,892)
[=ENE=R Benefit payment (53,168) —
FEHZ%E Exchange differences (10,857) 11,752
(64,025) 11,752
REER At end of the reporting period 101,226 205,573
RENSIZAR
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35. EIRBAERERE) 35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
RERRTE &) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
BEMENEEZRER The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2017 2016
% %
g = Discount rate 3.85 3.00
TEHAS BT 0 Expected rate of salary increases 3.00 8.00
REEH SETERHEREZNA The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
R e B R TRANE 2B possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
EDTInT the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2017 2016
RERNMERL RERMALLT
ol -3l MR
EE Tk 2(4 Change in cE ok Change in
Change in  defined benefit Changein  defined benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
ERS Discount rate +-0.5%  -2.71%/+2.86% +-0.5%  -3.20%/+3.41%
BHEEA R Expected rate of salary increases +-05%  +3.22%/-3.08% +-05%  +3.47%/-3.30%
LUERESMERESREER The above sensitivity analyse is prepared based on a reasonable
LHABALEEEER  MEMB possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
R R o H b 4 BB SR Hh AT AL assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
BiE P Bk Sy also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
KR EDMEFA - FBEFBEAIA R accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
RASEEAREEATENSETNE method is used to determine the present value of the defined
BEREBEY S EREKAMNBER benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
ERA(ER) - AN ENE applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
EHSEND ARNEREARNERHIE of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
BB E DT o analyses for the current and previous year.
ERBERERAT
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35. BIRAERE) 35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
RERRTE &) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
AERMNEERMEFHERARZ The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
5739 (20164 : 6.73%F) » is 5.73 years (2016 6.73 years).

REBLENE - A2EEBRNE Under the plan, the Taiwan employees can be entitled to
360 pris = HRIRIEAH] o retirement benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60.
REBMELERFEE The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
E AEETEENERLTHERD contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
TEEFEEZAEHR - ARMIB AR the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
REF TR BB ST - expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is
as follows:
2017 2016
ARHFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#5EZ)
(Restated)
1FR Within 1 year 10,426 32,470
BRI FER2FR More than 1 year but within 2 years 5,715 10,161
@2 FERSFR More than 2 years but within 5 years 44,133 64,739
BiE 5 F Over 5 years 126,326 305,949
186,600 413,319
36. EEHE 36. DEFERRED TAXATION

AEBFELCHARERZIOT

liabilities are as follows:

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax

2017 2016

ARETT ABRETFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

(#&E2l)

(Restated)

NG At beginning of year 1,197,704 1,122,078
MEARME B2 Withholding tax paid on distributions of

B TERR earnings by subsidiaries (625,607) (212,848)

U BB B 2 =) Additions - business combination 9,842 —

FAGARWERA Charge to consolidated income statement 180,077 288,474

REER At end of the reporting period 762,016 1,197,704

RENEIZER
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36.

ELEBR ()

36. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

RNEER PHERAZELERBEE Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
JFE=R=LUNNE reporting period represent the following:
2017 2016
BE =L BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ANREFT ARETT | AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(#cE51) (#c=E51)
(Restated) (Restated)
IRFR IS & Accelerated depreciation allowance — (596,205) — (527,105)
R ASITE Decelerated depreciation allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
NRAERAE Fair value adjustment on:
— I AE 4V — Prepaid lease payments and — (72,094) — (65,211)
B - property, plant and equipment
S E
B
—\mEEE — Intangible asset — (43,525) — (44,795)
— B MEME - Investment properties — (17,072) — (5,517)
A& Impairment losses 81,174 — 58,440 —
REBER Un-invoiced accrual 115,257 — 92,941 —
ZTERREA
HEWE - #22  Unrealised profit on property, 81,353 — 91,080 —
By plant and equipment
RERFE
WEreEZ Undistributed earnings of — (307,178) — (801,951)
R BELFE subsidiaries
B B 1R Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Efb Others 392 (33,952) 3,996 (29,416)
EERBAEE Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 308,010 (1,070,026) 276,291 (1,473,995)
(BfE)

BREBCEMRERE  INEREEK
MRPEMIINEREDEFESD
BB A BR10% 8 B R ik 78 1R
Tio Z# EMN2008F1A1HEE
& AR 2007F 12 B31H %18
BFrAl S EADE o fwep B BT R
ZHNEI & A 2 P R B 2R ok b & B
FAEBWZEE - rIEABRERE -

REEIZERERA R
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Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
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36.

ELEBR ()

NEBERAHREEHE10% - KEER
BE R B EA B 5 2007 F 1% BREY
I 8 ERAE A R SR AR A9 R i 5 R
FIERN 225 2 50% mat iR
MELEHBEEE EHAEESS
B Fff B 2 &) F7 3 £ 50% 7 2007 F
&R 2 FFE 2 Rt @ B TEE
T 7] B 2R R i T 9 B 2 0% F)E
(T&TFMNBDBOERSE
I RBAZEIIMAT c BAEE ZF
BEIffEARFMIEE 2B E ARG
ENARITNERSITERIIE -

ZEFRMBAG 2 T FFERN
TEIR BB R A A K ®1,501,528,000
JL(20164F = A K& #1,370,694,000
L) BEERBBAAIEZEHRTF
FEERBESHENBRATIZEESR
© o WA RERAETESEL ©
1P fB 4 RE O MERRR B o

REEHR AEEEHARE
111,128,000 7T(2016 4 : A K ¥
111,128,000 7T ) i T4 EHEER RIE
ERIEEE - MEE BN BIERT
HZEEBEELERHARAFRZ
Riskes - REZER AHEREL

36.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the Group's PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the
applicable rate is 10%. Deferred tax liability is provided on 50% of
aggregate amount of post-2007 net earnings of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries that are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable
future. The remaining 50% aggregate amount of post-2007 net
earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries that are not expected
to be distributed in the foreseeable future (the “Remaining Net
Earnings”) would be subject to additional taxation when they are
distributed. Undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC associates
and joint ventures are not subject to withholding tax as these
companies are held by a PRC subsidiary.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution of the
Remaining Net Earnings were approximately RMB1,501,528,000
(2016: RMB1,370,694,000). In the opinion of the directors, the
Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time, are required for
financing the continuing operations of these entities and no
distribution to foreign investors would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation
have been made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
(2016: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are

MIBEE BB EEIBRFEHET as follows:
2017 2016
BREERIR ARE T ABRWEF T
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
(AEEZ))
(Restated)
2017 — 344,770
2018 478,504 552,458
2019 911,136 957,771
2020 666,887 958,518
2021 589,923 978,400
2022 693,845 —
3,340,295 3,791,917
FREDEIZAR
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37. ERERR

37. TRADE PAYABLES

2017 2016
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#c=E51)
(Restated)
P BRX Trade payables
B=5 To third parties 5,836,747 5,702,765
BEAEEA T To related parties
—ARRRIZEER — A group of companies jointly controlled
HiRE A A by the Company's directors and
et CVNE their dependents 1,066,154 672,917
—ARRRZESR — Companies jointly controlled by
HEEH 2 A F the Company'’s directors 201,710 216,009
HENF To joint ventures 14,812 3,664
7,119,423 6,595,355

ENE=F EHBALRAKA
AZEMNERRASERM - B K&K

B30FEQQKER -

ENRIANEERAREZAREL

to 90 days.

The trade payables to third parties, related parties and joint
ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit period of 30

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at

214 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

BT the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2017 2016
ARETFTT AR®ETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(FBE2))
(Restated)
0-90 H 0 -90 days 6,335,339 5,938,123
90 B E Over 90 days 784,084 657,232
7,119,423 6,595,355

EAEERERAT
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37. BREMRE) 37. TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)
JEMBRFUAT I EEETIE The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
2017 2016
ARETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4% &%)
(Restated)
AR RMB 7,119,050 6,583,730
T uss$ 254 11,539
Mak NTD 119 86
7,119,423 6,595,355
38. HiEMRERDKHES 38. OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED
2017 2016
AR¥TTT ARMF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#=E%l)
(Restated)
el Deposits received in advance 2,171,708 2,027,762
B EERESER Accruals for transportation, promoting and
2 AR advertising expenses 2,615,470 2,539,317
THERRAMKEER Accruals for administrative expenses and
TR other operating expenses 440,360 435,921
B TE KB & Salaries and welfare payables 972,444 873,629
FERTRRME Payables for purchase of equipment 42,753 82,156
FEA H A 7 IR Other tax payables 671,158 450,940
HAtb Others 503,139 288,150
7,417,032 6,697,875
BT
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39. REXKMBRE 39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2017 2016
AR¥TFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#=E%))
(Restated)
BT B4 A Profit before taxation 3,392,736 2,433,516
MEER Interest expenses 454,868 496,303
MEHA Interest income (270,786) (218,178)
e Depreciation 3,513,679 3,676,512
AHEHESREEZ Dividend income from available-for-sale
A& F HA financial assets (1,103) —
0 FH 4905 (B 2 1 5 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 106,618 117,217
B EE 2 EHE Amortisation of intangible asset 5,079 5,015
HEME - ek Loss on disposal of property, plant and
BER AL EE equipment and prepaid lease payments
&8 15,337 32,033
M - B RERE Impairment loss on property,
VRN SR plant and equipment 224,021 118,150
RARBEIER Change in fair value of financial
FEZREENSRE®E  liabilities at fair value through
AREZ 8 HE profit or loss, net (126,349) 67,614
HEMEHEANREZEE) Change in fair value of investment properties (46,223) (21,728)
HH—REE QA Gain on re-measurement of an associate to
RBEBZAAEE fair value at acquisition date (7,381) —
HERB AR Z W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (43,725) —
HEAHEESHEE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
P& financial assets (21,080) (45,548)
FE(REEE R E & Share of results of associates and
BENRIFEE joint ventures (101,180) (74,145)
EREB B Effect on exchange rate changes (150,117) 125,907
RYNARE = EE R Recognition of equity-settled
Sz F0E share-based payment 44,234 55,157
FE 2R () Decrease (Increase) in inventories 60,037 (525,515)
JFE LB BR 51 2 388 0 Increase in trade receivables (329,939) (74,337)
FENFIBEREMBUWFIE  Decrease in prepayments and
2R other receivables 127,762 440,382
FESRR R 2 38 0 Increase in trade payables 747,846 1,898,100
HAv R R Increase in other payables and
B 21 deposits received 676,916 559,879
B P TEN FRIE 218 Increase in advance payments
from customers 269,298 215,687
M E L BAEMEIME  (Decrease)increase in present value of
Z O ) 18 unfunded employee benefit obligations (41,453) 30,144
REXBRBRE Cash generated from operations 8,499,095 9,312,165
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39, RELEHMBRE(E)

39(a) MEEBELNEBEHIR

TRADAEERABMEETH
MEEZEE  BFERS MR
TEY METHELNAER
BEASBEGZERSRERT
DEAREERDHELENRER

39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)

39(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

£
FREEE
Non-cash changes
#20176 mE #a #20176
1R1H Bk FEXH  EXEE  12A31H
At Amortised At
1January  Financing interest ~ Exchange 31 December
2017  cashflows  expenses realignment 2017
AREFT AREFT ARETR AREFT AREFR
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
K (i)
Note (i)
EERRE(W7#34)  Unsecured notes (Note 34) 5,669,548  (4,383,600) 9,751 (101,975 1,193,724
RITER(W:#34)  Banks loans (ote 34) 10,374,388 3,270,959 —  (454,798) 13,190,549
16,043,936  (1,112,641) 9,751 (556,773) 14,384,273
() SRITEFATISFR © 8R1T (i)  The cash flows used in unsecured notes and bank
R E it FAR R IR R A loans make up the net amount of proceeds from bank
i A2 HA 5 O E/ RN borrowings, repayments of bank and other borrowings
REEAEERRRITER

MRS RE -

and net movement of other short-term borrowings.
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40. HEBBRALTZEARS 40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BRI ARGEREEMIBODBEE X In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
SRARTEIAN ATy AREBEA the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
BHMATETZEARIBE ik following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
EXGTIRAEBZBBEBRHE of the Group’s business.
170
2017 2016
Hist AR¥TFT AREFr
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
(A Z5)
(Restated)
(a) BBALTZRZ (a) Related party transactions
BT AREEER ! Sales of goods to:
ERARZEERR Companies controlled by a substantial
125l 2 ZFRA] shareholder of the Company (i) 146,871 135,189
i ieN Associates 110,068 128,200
SN Joint ventures 276,903 294,263
BT ARBEER ! Purchases of goods from:
RRARIZEER A group of companies jointly controlled
H B R by the Company’s directors and
Z—#N7 their dependents (i) 5,062,366 2,907,648
BERQH Joint ventures 89,641 57,088
|5 AR Promotional expenses paid to:
RHER
RRAZEERE Companies controlled by a substantial
2 ZEAF shareholder of the Company 0) 30,670 22,920
BTRAARRER Administrative expenses paid
WEHITHER : on behalf and received from;
E-WNC] Joint ventures 15,263 7,119
a5 A B U EIR & Rental income from investment
FEihERYE - #es properties and property, plant and
SES Ak equipment:
KRARIZEERR Companies controlled by a substantial
22 £ AE shareholder of the Company 38,818 34,117
KRRz EEZRELE A group of companies jointly controlled by
HEEE 2 — AR the Company's directors and their
dependents 3,263 2,095
M) BE ETRBE4AE  ZEH Note (i) These related party transactions also constitute continuing
BB AT 2R G ARERE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
R o Rules.
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40. BEEBALTZEARS(E) 40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) BREEAEZHME (b) Key management personnel remuneration
AEBBEBEEEAEZHE Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
(BEGAMBREM T AT including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, chief
BERARNTES @ 1TTHEH executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
YNZzZBERAE TS E5E as disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial
SXftzFmE)WT statements, is as follows:

2017 2016
AR¥ T ARBFoT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 &E3)
(Restated)
E==wiokey Directors’ fees 4,265 4,228
e kEMmBE Salaries and other emoluments 55,793 55,600
VARG 2 1+ 2 5RIE Share-based payments 24,444 27,939
TE4T Discretionary bonuses 6,651 3,042
91,153 90,809

41, WEEKE AT 41. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

2017F58108 A Q& k2
EMBEARIBE(FEDREARA
AEEREDHEREEEE QA
MMNBESEAE s —2RRITER ]
FIVEEWZ Bt BFKRER
EmMEA(YEDKERIMNE ET]
LEEIN2S S WRME WA BRI
MEEREFLRES  REZKR
BE BEREBREZREER
([RxEeEE |) & 50 52 A B 2R BT AY BB
MR TR EEM =8 B A& 7 i
BLat25% M E ] R iEr—
MR R F 5 o %R 5 ETEAER R
FIHea D IB AR e B e B AR W TR AT R
20194 6 A 30 HE Z ATFEAX °

On 10 May 2017, PepsiCo Investment (China) Limited (“PICL"),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the SPA with one of the shareholders (the “Vendor"”) of HZPS,
an associate of the Group, pursuant to which PICL agreed to
acquire an additional 25% equity interest in HZPS from the
Vendor (the “Acquisition”). In addition, the Vendor also issued
the Authorisation Letter to PICL under which PICL shall be entitled
irrevocably all the rights and benefits of the aforesaid 25% equity
interest in HZPS currently held by the Vendor for a period up to
the completion date of the registration of the equity transfer (the
"Equity Transfer”). The registration of the Equity Transfer with
the relevant government authority is currently in the progress and
expected to be completed on or before 30 June 2019.
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41.

WEEHE AR (&)

BBNTZEEREAEESE &
MERRIEREEMMNE LN
MHER25%EMES0% » MAEE
BEMMNE S LRLREE - E
BEERT BEBELEMB2017F
9OR1 A  REBEHMING A4
HmEEGE BZBEAREKRE
REEHKHB AR -

WEFENARERERENKEA
R# 178,000,000 7t A U B8 A B 2
TERHEM B RE AR 5,690,000
T BEBeBENIREEBEREMR
ERABHMAAMMBEETILNHE
—HoEAMLFMET BB A
20197 A 8 2 Bl B B 4505 ©
FREZNTFI>REREBEARE
138,000,0007T + E T & H R €
KB A R ¥ 40,000,000 7T 78 5 #5 7
20199 6 A30 Ak 2 AT 45 - B It
72017F12 A31BEF AHE M IE
mEALE -

BH2017F9 8 1HKX2017F 12 A
318 BN BRENAAEBED
Bl A A R # 5,690,000 7T & A R #
5,258,0007T * EEFARANEET]
ErMEBERRRENSHEENIE
mENE D o Bt BEARBEES M
EA Wz AR 432,000 TEEFA
REE 2 1EE o
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41.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Through the execution of the SPA and Authorisation Letter, the
equity interest in HZPS held by TAB increased from 25% to 50%
and the Group holds more than a majority of the voting rights of
HZPS. The management concluded that the Group has control
over HZPS and this associate became a subsidiary of the Group
from the effective of the Authorisation Letter on 1 September
2017.

Total consideration of the Acquisition comprised cash
consideration of RMB178,000,000 and contingent consideration
payable estimated to be RMB5,690,000 at the acquisition date
which was determined based on a certain portion of projected
net profit of HZPS for a specified period as defined in the SPA
and is expected to be fully settled in or before July 2019. During
the year, cash consideration amounting to RMB138,000,000
was paid and the remaining portion of the cash consideration of
RMB40,000,000 is expected to be settled on or before 30 June
2019 and is therefore recorded in other non-current liabilities at
31 December 2017.

At 1 September 2017 and at 31 December 2017, the fair value
of the contingent consideration payable was RMB5,690,000 and
RMB5,258,000 respectively, which was recorded in the non-
current portion of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. As a result, gain on change in fair value of RMB432,000 was
credited to profit or loss for the year.
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41.

WEEM B AR (&)

AT Bt S B B B E T R R A AR
EBMMEBEEMMAZAGN S
B ARMHERLBIRRERESER

41. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The following summarises the consideration paid and payable and

the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well

as the amount of non-controlling interest recognised at the date

of acquisition:

AREFIT
RMB’000
RE Consideration:
ERRENRE Consideration paid in cash 138,000
JENRAE Consideration payable 40,000
JER A RE Contingent consideration payable 5,690
wEE s RE Total consideration transferred 183,690
ARBFT
RMB’000
FrUs BS R AT 8 B B E R AR Recognised amounts of identified asset
EEzERESE acquired and liabilities assumed:
M - HWERRE Property, plant and equipment 102,959
THEL RS Prepaid lease payments 46,837
RITHEB MRS Bank balances and cash 237,194
JE W AR X Trade receivables 40,887
TE A R IE I H h FE UK IE Prepayments and other receivables 99,971
FE Inventories 29,492
BETRIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (9,842)
JEFER IR Trade payables (84,075)
AL Taxation (5,888)
HAb R RIE R EWIFE Other payables and deposit received (114,415)
B EEFEASE Total identifiable net assets 343,120
DERRER Non-controlling interest (171,560)
171,560
O 0k (Less)/Add:
EREEANFEL S BRI S Transferred from interest previously held and
NEIMNES classified as an associate (78,399)
EETEBE AT EWERH Gain on re-measurement of an associate to
AR EENKE () fair value at acquisition date (Note 9) (7,381)
DEEBRBEEEERNEE(KFE19) Goodwill arising from step acquisition (Note 19) 97,910
wEEZE s RE Total consideration transferred 183,690
RENEIZER
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4. WBHEAR(E) 41. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)
ARBTFr
RMB’000
WERBARZRESRAEE ! Net cash flow on acquisition of the subsidiary:
BENRERE Consideration paid in cash (138,000)
R E A AU S 2 RITAEBR KRR S Bank balances and cash acquired from the subsidiary 237,194
99,194

SECEBRENRKE T ATERE
ERAE L PIEt 8 D BRIRE

N

e

REBREBREHRIENMINE S 2R
BAFEAEERIAKEARSE
7,381,000 2 Wz o Wamméra U
RN EAFIA R RER o

WEERELNEEANTME S
MEBAFEARIIER R EANEHE
5 RIBUEFTER o T RERERRA]
BRELEENRRRE  AtTE
REEDFRER - A ERNEE
TEWHBRAEH - ARRIEFEH
ZUEERNARERMEHZ TS
0%8 °

o

RS B 87 2 FE AR R R A I K
HEBURIEN A A EREEN SR
D RIAAREA0,887,0007T A REE
99,971,0007T ° )2 {E & 52 TEHA
R o

BEBAHE  MMNEERAANEEER
il A R#134,292,0007T - i1 ¥
REBFARRENLEBRER -

WFEAEBFEHENR2017F1H18
1T AIRNSEEEZE2017F12H31
HIEFE R A R BR T & A K 5 Bl
A AR#59,458,010,0007C 2 AR #
2,290,837,0007T ° AKX ERHE #
HPAZH AT —ERBRASEER
201751 A1 BE TRk R B ATRE B
RS RAC B AT -
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The Group has selected to measure the non-controlling interests
at its proportionate interest in the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the acquiree.

The Group recognised a gain on step acquisition of RMB7,381,000
as a result of measuring at fair value of its equity interest in HZPS
before the business combination. The gain was recognised in
other net income in the consolidated income statement.

The goodwill arising from the Acquisition is attributable to the
synergies expected to arise from the business combination and
future growth and profitability of HZPS. The benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill because they do not meet
the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. None of
the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income
tax purposes. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
acquisition would increase the market share of the Group's
beverage business.

The fair value and gross contractual amount of the trade
receivables and prepayments and other receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to RMB40,887,000 and RMB99,971,000
respectively. No amounts were expected to be uncollectible.

Since the business combination, HZPS has contributed revenue
of RMB134,292,000 to the Group while it made no significant
contribution to the Group's profit after tax for the year.

If the business combinations effected during the year had been
taken place on 1 January 2017, the Group's revenue and profit
after tax for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
RMB59,458,010,000 and RMB2,290,837,000 respectively. This
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017.
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42. HEHEBAT 42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

REAN AEBEEE-FZBIUFE=
FRIMNZEE B A H &R
Boa K#EBERELAERAT
(IpEPTER ]) - ERENB (R ) &R
BRAF(EMERRA])  mETE
ERMBBRAF(MEIER]) KT
FITBEZRMABRAR(NIMNIERE])
MEIRE BRENAEARE
707,553,0007C - FIBHEEFEER
2017 F 9 A¥IZ 2 BITTHK °

ATt 0 i (B R & B

During the year, the Group entered into various sales and
purchase agreements with an independent third party for the
disposal of entire equity interests in four subsidiaries namely
Chengdu Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. (“CDTJ"), Master Kong (Kunming)
Beverage Co., Ltd. (“MKKB"), Nanchang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd
(“NCTJ") and Jiangmen Tinglin Food Co., Ltd. ("JMTJ") at an
aggregate consideration of approximately RMB707,553,000. All
the disposals were completed in or before early September 2017.

The following summarises the consideration received and the

BELRBENERDE : carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the date of disposal:
RHEE EROEESR BERE IMER A%
CDT) MKKB NCT) JMTJ Total
ANREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFIL
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
FUEnFEE Net assets disposed of
nE - BRI Property, plant & equipment 807,460 339,263 419,374 170423 1,736,520
TS RE Premium for land lease 23,932 — 48,684 83,120 155,736
RE Inventories 27,940 9,757 12,943 4,076 54,716
R Trade receivables 84,234 83,631 63,916 92,553 324,334
R ERE Tax recoverable — 2,648 — - 2,648
BRFEREMERTIE Prepayments and other receivables 17,314 16,467 1,168 1,852 36,801
BRRTER Pledged bank deposits 1328 — 5,1 19 — 6,447
BTEBRES Bank balance and cash 12,244 6 23,17 2,557 37,978
FERERR Trade payables (145,856) (38,486) (93, 079) (30432)  (307,853)
EHEAFERE YIS Other payables and deposit received (605,063) (294,199) (277,075) (191,160)  (1,367,497)
XEENZE Advance payments from customers (149) 23) (53) (31) (256)
WE Taxation (5,941) - (5,127) (4,678) (15,746)
217,443 119,064 199,041 128,280 663,828
LEHBLAN Gain (Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries

W (E8) (22,443) 936 70,512 (5,280) 43,725

195,000 120,000 269,553 123,000 707,553

BYRE Consideration received
HeRE Cash consideration 195,000 120,000 269,553 123,000 707,553
LEMBLRRL Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries

BemAFE:
BeRE Cash consideration 195,000 120,000 269,553 123,000 707,553
BHE 7R RS SEN Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (13,572) 6) (28,290) (2,557) (44,425)

BeRBLEEN 2 Netinflow of cash and cash equivalents
RAFE 181,428 119,994 241,263 120,443 663,128
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43, EXREE 43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

REMe A AR R
i EEE R AR IR
R AR B R -

REBFERABRBESFEMNKRES
kB eEBYNGEEBE)FENE
EBBELEERARARIHE AEIL
RESMR)UEREER(BIER
BERRE D) o  MEHREHEREL
T

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting
period was as follows:

2017 2016

AR% T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(4 =E3l)

(Restated)

BREE Interest-bearing borrowings 14,384,273 16,043,936

B BekBEe Less: Cash and cash equivalents

FED (10,284,889) (10,231,812)

FRE Net debt 4,099,384 5,812,124
RNA TR FELG Total equity attributable to owners of

B the Company 18,412,079 18,123,540

BEEERL Gearing ratio 22.26% 32.07%

AEEBRBECEBMEREE

BETEREIMERERERE - I
ﬁﬁ%@#ﬂ%"kﬂ%§$%
BoBBERERE BERARE
% BIOTHEBGARKRERN L
MPEMLE  ZRMEEENX
BE)  RARERHEMRERS -

PR2017 4 » A& E KK 2016
FHR - EERFRERETHE -

KBS BT REF R BT %
BT RN E R E -

REEIZERERA R
224 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2017, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2016, aims at minimising the net debt approximately to nil
balance.

Some of the Group's banking facilities are subject to financial
covenants requirements imposed by certain banks.
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44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, available-for-sale financial assets
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company on its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities
of the subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted
in their functional currency. Considered the diverged trends of
the exchange rates between RMB and the US dollars and the
Group itself, the Group has adjusted its financing strategy since
September 2015 to increase the PRC subsidiaries’ proportion
of onshore financing and to reduce their foreign currencies
financing. Apart from the CCS and IRS arrangements, the Group
has not entered into significant hedging activities to hedge against
the exposure to foreign currency risk.
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44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Details of the Group's available-for-sale financial assets, cash and
cash equivalents, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables denominated
in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
are set out in notes 23, 28, 33, 34 and 37 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
4.1%, 3.2% and 8.8% respectively (2016: 4.5%, 0.8% and
4.3% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB45,287,000 (2016:RMB140,073,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group's exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency represent
management'’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual end
of the reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2016.
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RFIEE - REEH - &£EEIRS
MCCSEEBZEE  AEETETER
R7EFB11% (20164 : 36 % )&
ET7%(20164F : 33%) °

REEH EEEIRSKCCSEEZ
BE MABEMEERFTE
RITERRELSERFNEREA A
1£100(20164F : 75) &2 » KEEF
EE R RRBEF AR, A0
AR #64,212,0007T(2016 %F : &
A I A FEHE 38,186,000T) °

BREESMBREMNERFENRNT IR
BHUEANAEEMBERER
GFEZ2M T ENFERARK 100
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EEEFENERBAET —FE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates and fixed interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. For interest-bearing borrowings,
the Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of
fixed and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate
exposure and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings
in consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.

The Group has entered into a number of CCS and IRS
arrangements which have the economic effect of converting
certain fixed rate interest bearing notes with notional amounts
totaling RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to US$160,803,000 at the
date of arrangements) into floating rate borrowings denominated
in US$ and simultaneously converting notional amounts totaling
US$80,000,000 into fixed rate borrowings as further detailed in
note 34 above. Apart from the CCS and IRS arrangements, the
Group has not entered into significant hedging activities to hedge
against the exposure to cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s borrowings at
fixed rate of interest was 11% (2016: 36%), and reduced to 7%
(2016: 33%) upon taken into consideration the effects of the IRS
and CCS.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 100
(2016: 75) basis point higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits
would decrease/increase by RMB64,212,000 (2016: decrease/
increase by RMB38,186,000) upon taken into consideration the
effects of the IRS and CCS.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
financial instruments in existence during the year. The 100 (2016:
75) basis point increase or decrease represents management's
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2016.

REDBEIZAR

2017 Annual Report £ 227



AN
%Fm

B R FRMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

44,

cHERRE(E)

FERR

AEENEERRIEZEREREAS
REEEY  BEREREEME
WHRK - REBAE D S EITRT
FRMRERBEEEWHFRE
AERNBERSREERRBERE
EHMEHEE R EEERAR
BY T FEEANERERR -

AEBEZHEABDRRASHEE -
AEEERRBRAGEHEZER
ETERARUINEELERLIEE
HEE - ERPERZERTHEE
B-RIBER - BETEIEER
e AEEESTEEERIRR
B2 B EARZREAR -

AEEZHMERFRENEERR
RERRZHFTEN  EERZE
ERBESEAEESEEZREE-
RPEHZEEEEG UEG R
N EELEREMEEEZE -
ERBEEBRLREZE  EFR
BRGHAFWLEEANENR
R NEEBR  AEBERESZAK
EHEARBRNEFAZEBIEBFER
B R EU AT EAKT B A R R IE AR
ZEERBEFRED R A40.05%
(20164 : # ) % 100% (2016 4F :
m) o

BRMEZERERAA

228 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash
equivalent, trade and other receivables. Substantially all of the
Group's pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
were deposited in the creditworthy global financial institutions
and state-controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which
management considers they are without significant credit risk.

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash
basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that sales
of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade on
credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject to
periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. Receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other receivables arises from default
of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these receivables. The credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessment of the credit quality. Given the
repayment history, the directors are of the opinion that the risk of
default by these counterparties is not significant. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as
40.05% (2016: Nil) of the total debt investment and amount due
from former subsidiaries which was due from the Group’s largest
debtor, and 100% (2016: Nil) of the total debt investment and
amount due from former subsidiaries which was due from the
Group's five largest debtors.
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tREREE(Z) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
RBESER Liquidity risk
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HEHRABERORK  EFFEHALR
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The Group’s objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities. Also, the Group's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected
that the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.
Details of the preparation of consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis are set out in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
is summarised below:

2L
1ER3 1§ BESER
RERER BE2ER  More than
Within More than 2 years
1 year 1 year but
oron  butwithin less than SENL &t
demand 2 years Syears  Over5years Total
ABEFE  AREFL  ARETT  AREFZ  ARETR
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
R2017% At 31 December 2017
12A318
ERER Tradle payables 7119423 - - - 7119423
EERR Other payables and deposits received
Bl 5,748,430 - - - 5,748,430
BE[RE Interest-bearing horrowings 8,064,896 3,669,015 2,819,589 565253 15118753
CCSRIRS 2 %4 CCS and RS arrangements
(HELE) (net settled) (5.174) - - - (5,174)
20,927,575 3,669,015 2,819,589 565,253 27,981,432
REMEIZAR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

FBELRAME) Liquidity risk (Continued)
VRS 16N E WL
REXER (B2 [BESER
Within More than More than
1 year 1 year 2 years
oron but within but less SENE At
demand 2years  thanbyears  Over5years Total
ANRETT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT ARETT
RMB000 AMB 000 AMB 000 RMB000 RMB000
(427)) (427)) (#27)) (#27)) (#27))
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
20165 At 31 December 2016
124318
ERER Tradle payables 6,595,355 - - - 6,505,355
HAfERARR Other payables and deposits received
Bl 5373310 - - - 5373310
BERE Interest-bearing borrowings 9,347,303 252,197 4,055,352 541346 16471198
CCSRIRS ZZH(FELE)  CCSand RS amangements (net settled) (21,107) (6,654) - - (27,761)
21,294,861 2,520,543 4,055,352 541,346 28,412,102

ERpEEE—RETERALEK
TR AR EZE SRR E B
G HEEESEAREWEEA
[EESGEFER - BEEELTE
HEBEASTEEEERNER
A R #4,178,790,0007T(2016 © A
F#1,379,272,000 T )M EE BB IR
L FREE  ZEERENKBRER
EERFERAT

The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB4,178,790,000
(2016: RMB1,379,272,000) as at the end of the financial period
have been so classified even though the directors do not expect
that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment
and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the
following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:

2017 2016
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(4€EZ))
(Restated)
BEEREE Interest-bearing borrowings

196K Within 1 year 3,247,212 706,941
F245F In the second year 1,007,808 14,912

EIFEESF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEERE2F) — 695,696
4,255,020 1,417,549

B EERARA

230 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



FAETSIRERMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017%F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

S
=
|
[
EI‘—P
]

45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(@) UAAEBHEIBENEREERS (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
&
™ & 2 % 72017912 A 31 The following table presents the financial assets and
H (BB BREE liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their
BIYE 138 [ AR BETE fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a
BETHNALBEELHESN = recurring basis at 31 December 2017 across the three levels
BEHEFP LA BEIESK of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
BATHRUBRERFEEALB Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised
ENeREENABE  AnE in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
HENSREE T EN &S significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined
AEREAXEZHANKE as follows:
o BEASAIBLT -
—  B1(EEHA)  KE - Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
ErfEstE B FEREER active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
MG FEREENEBERN Group can access at the measurement date;
WMEBEOCRKERE)
- E2f BREETEE—R - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
RIFRESN - ATEZE S HE within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
MR EENAENE liability, either directly or indirectly;
A
—  FEI3IF(ZELR)  EBE —  Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
BRvEERABENER or liability.
Ao
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45. AREEFEE) 45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(a) ULAAREBEEIENESHEERA (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
&E(E) (Continued)
2017 2016
&A1 &2 fA3 Eh) fih 232 RA3 )
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETFL ARBTT ARBTL AREFZ UEETT A\RETL ARETT AREFT
RMB0O00  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMBO00 | RMBOOO — RMBOOO — RMBUO0  RMB0O0
(#25) (#25) (#25) (425
(Restated)  (Restated) — (Restateq) — (Restateq)
BE Assets
JHHE? Available-for-sale
2BEE fiancial assets
-REES - Investment funds = — 504359 504359 - — 487054 487,054
—EEMRAES - Unlisted equity securities - - M2 172 - — 130757 130757
= — 615081 615081 - — 617811 61781
B Liabilities
KA EENER  Fnancal Lisbifties at fai valle
FEREEES  though profitor loss
-Ef5ERE - Contingent consideration payable - - 5,258 5,258 - - - -
~JHERALR - Derivatives not
IEm designated as
fETE hedging instruments — 37448 - 37448 — 152,65 — 152650
= 37,448 5,258 42,706 — 152,650 — 152,650
MR2017ER2016FEE RN » 38 During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
EHEBERA1ELR2 2 H were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
B B EEBREZELR measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair
3/ RIIEH o value measurements.
B EERERAR
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45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016
are shown as follows:

217 2016
(3 af 2E 8fF
LT )
RAEs ENIAER RAZs ENIEERE
REES Unlisted ~ Contingent REES Unlisted Contingent
Investment equity  consideration Investment equity  consideration
funds securities payable funds securities payable

ABETE  ARETT  AREFZ | AEFFT  AREFT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIB000 RMB000 RVB000
(#27)) (#27)) (#27))
(Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq)

RER Atbeginning of the year 487,054 130,757 - 391,429 101,29 -
EIN Purchases 16,983 - - 67,521 - -
RS A At completion day of acquisition - - (5,690) - - -
e Disposal (79,484) - - (35,243) - -
Bi5l BhE Total gains or (losses)
7 (5%) recognised:
-B& ~in profit or loss - - 3 - - -
- B2 ERE ~in other comprehensive income 107,346 (11,949) - 35,436 22,406 -
ERZE Exchange difference (27,540) (8,086) - 27911 7,056
REER At the end of the
reporting period 504,359 110,722 (5.258) 487,054 130,757 -
REEEHELH Total gain or (losses) for
Et2ENEER the year reclassified from
E28WHEH(B%)  other comprehensive
income on disposals 21,080 - - 2,132 - -
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HZE2017F12A318 -
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BREEMREESBRER
DERANEBEERNS3
BILEES(2016F - 1
B3R5 3) °

ERB3ER—IHEER
THARERZERNKE
KERNEERREES
MEZHREESHEF
HhEr - BAIZEHB =
(2016 %F : ={B) 2 EE
S ZRRERBEESHT
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e FTEHRRBI3ZIER
SHREEMEREMIE L
MRE - EWIRENDR
BfETRLEMERE
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MAXREKR » MHERER
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HERAMERTE o FPEIE
EWMRARNAAREREE
— U IER AT R TS E S
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FEEHERELH-18%
E29% (20164 - 0%
F29%) - AL AFIZ
FHWAEERI66EE
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ZEHMHEER21EE
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45,

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement

(i)

Available-for-sale: Investment funds

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s available-for-
sale financial assets comprise four investment funds
which are categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (20716 four Level 3).

The fair value of one of the investment funds in
Level 3 is estimated based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors
by the investment manager as at the end of the
reporting period. For the remaining three (2076:
three) investment funds in Level 3, their fair values are
estimated based on the fair values of the companies
invested by the funds. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price,
while the fair values of unlisted investments are
estimated by the respective investment managers
using valuation techniques, including mainly price/
earnings (P/E) multiple model, price/sales (P/S)
multiple model and discounted cash flows model. In
determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The expected
annual growth rates of unquoted companies invested
by the funds ranging from -18% to 29% (2076: 0%
to 29%), average price/earnings (P/E)and average
price/sales (P/S) multiples of comparable companies
of the corresponding industries ranging from 16.6
to 47.4 times (2016: 13.1 to 48.6 times) and 2.1
to 10.4 times (2076 1.5 to 7.6 times) respectively.
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45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Available-for-sale: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 newly invested in current year are determined
by the investment manager using price/sales (P/S)
multiple model. In determining the fair value of the
unlisted equity securities, it includes assumptions that
are not supported by observable market prices or
rates, including expected annual growth rates of 0%
(2016: 29%) and comparable companies’ average P/S
multiples of 1.5 times (2076: 1.48 times).

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

The fair values of IRS and CCS contracts, which are
categorised as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy,
determined based on the present value of the
estimated cash flows based on the terms and maturity
of each contract, taking into account the current
interest rates, foreign exchange spot and forward
rates and interest rate curves.

(iv)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Contingent consideration payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable in
Level 3 is determined by using the income approach
based on the expected payment amounts and their
associated probabilities. When appropriate, it is
discounted to present value. In the opinion of the
directors, changing one or more of the inputs to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not
change the fair value significantly.

RENSIZAR
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45, DREEE(E) 45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(a) URAAEBEIBRNEHEERS (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
E(E) (Continued)
FERTEEMARRE ST Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
inputs
LRI3ANEBEAEZFENAE The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable inputs
R ABRE 2 FEHIT for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
MEER
AEEAEE
Efh2EkE
hEg
Impact on fair
RW1TE ATBREGANERY value and the
128318 MMEENSRE Group's other
ZARE (RREMEZRETR) comprehensive
Fair value at 31 Sensitivity of fair income for
December 2017 fEfERSE value to changes in FENTREE the year
g ARBEFT Valuation FUBRHA unobservable inputs (assuming Reasonably — AZEFT
Description AMB000  techniques Unobservable input  other factors remain unchanged) possible range RMB'000
HHESHER
Available-for-sale financial assets
REES 504359 TREER ERRHERE FRBELRENR - +-10% +5,513
EDpERE R
Investment funds PIE multiple Expected annual The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
growth rates fair value and vice versa;
BT ARBRE THHRELS - 1% 4780
THmRx ERABEER KRR
Average PIE ratio of The higher average PIE ratio of comparable companies, the
comparable companies  higher the fair value and vice versa;
MiEERE JERES- ERnBEER R +1-5% 14,612
P/S multiple Expected annual The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
growth rates fair value and vice versa;
TLRARZTHTE AHRARZTOmEE 2% +-13,325
¥ FRNDABE R
Average PISratioof  The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies, the
comparable companies  higher the fair value and vice versa;
5 LSS ;8 B FERE RELENEREEREER +-5% 45,536
ERpEEER  R2TR-
Unlisted equity securities 110,722 PIS multiple Expected annual growth  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
rates fair value and vice versa;
TLARNTETHEE  ARARMTOTEELER  ARABEER R2A #33% 436,907

Average P/S ratio of #:
comparable companies  The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies, the
higher the fair value and vice versa;
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45. DAREEE(E)

(@) HUXAEEIIRNEMEERE

45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

&E(E) (Continued)
FERTEHEHARRBREZETH Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
(%) inputs (Continued)
MEER
AREAEE
Et2ERE
20165 NEE
124318 Impact on fair
ZARE FUBRBANERY value and the
Fair value at 31 MEEHSRE Group's other
December 2016 (BREMEZRETE) comprehensive
NEEFT Sensitivity of fair income for
ABO00 fEESA value to changes in RENTREE the year
it (#27))  Valuation TUBZAA unobservable inputs (assuming Reasonably NREFT
Description (Restateq) techniques Unobservable input  other factors remain unchanged) possible range RVB000
THHESHER
Available-for-sale financial assets
REES 48705 TRERE FRRMERE FRRBEREZHNE +-10% 4432
ERRBHR R2MA:
Investment funds P/E muttiple Expected annual growth  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
rates fair value and vice versa;
AHHRRAL AHRRA THRESS +-1% +743
THmRE EDnEEES  R2TE:
Average P/E ratio of The higher average PIE ratio of comparable companies, the
comparable companies  higher the fair value and vice versa;
THERY BHERE EDABEER RO 5% 41,938
PIS muttiple Expected annual The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
growth rates fair value and vice versa;
TRRRAZTITE TRAN TEE 3% #5763
% FEOLREE R2AR
Average P/S ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies, the
comparable companies  higher the fair value and vice versa;
AU AR RitEERE EBEENEREEREER 5% #5070
ERRBEHR RM -
Unlisted equity securities 130,757 P/S multiple Expected annual growth  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
rates fair value and vice verss;
ALARNTETEE  ARARMTHNEEER  ARABEER RN +1-34% +/-44.324
Average P/S ratio of f:
comparable companies  The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies, the
higher the fair value and vice versa;
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45,

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.

The Group's finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation technigues and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, except for the Listed
Unsecured Notes as described in the note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2017 and
2016.
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46. 7RI

46.

BRRAGEAVHBREMITODRE
ZHEYE - NEEB TS

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the commitments disclosure elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has the
commitments as follow:

(a) EBEARXHAIE (a) Capital expenditure commitments
2017 2016
AREFT AREFT
BRI R R EE Contracted but not provided for: RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 &%)
(Restated)
BEMER Expenditures on properties,
BRERAX plant and equipment 927,244 797,850
REES Investment funds 106,258 128,554
1,033,502 926,404
(b) HEBENEE (b) Commitments under operating leases
AEBBFRBA The Group as lessee

REER  REFAHE K
B AEERXKEHE
MEREREHIRT

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which are payable as follows:

2017 2016

AREFT ABWEF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

(#&E5))

(Restated)

196 A Within one year 294,644 293,722
RE2FEESFEM  In the second to fifth years inclusive

(BREEE2F) 477,436 530,851

5 A% After five years 105,185 142,357

877,265 966,930

REMEIZAR
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46. #ifE(E) 46. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
AEFZHBA The Group as lessor
AEEALFLENEEHREE The Group leases out certain of its investment properties
THREEEHE - FHED under operating leases with average lease terms of 2-3 years
HR2E3FEREEREHE and with options to renew the leases upon expiry at new
EARF AT AL TR - R terms. The future aggregate minimum rental receivables
TRl Rz &EFH4) - Bg=E under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
ZRNEES 2 RERW T
2017 2016
ARBETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#E5))
(Restated)
156R Within one year 34,375 33,214
ME2FZHESFEM  In the second to fifth years inclusive
(BREERE2F) 15,329 29,975
49,704 63,189
47. tkEBEF 47. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
HRAEEHBEHRY BE Conforming to current year's presentation, the gross rental income
201612 A31B o lk%%: R from investment properties of RMB27,924,000 that was included
H b U 255138 5 384 M B A 5 in other revenue as shown in the consolidated income statement
AL U A A AR 27,924,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 has been reclassified under
EHOBELFAWZAERN - B4 revenue. In addition, expenses of RMB323,240,000 that were
EBZE2016F 124318 264 included in other operating expenses and other net income of
HERN BEFHMKLERIEAER RMB812,371,000 as shown in the consolidated income statement
TETEMAL ARK323,240,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been reclassified
TRHEMFWABR S AR K under other net income (expenses). The revised presentation
812,371,0007C ' CEHHHEEHM reflected more appropriately the nature of these items. These
B A (T H) o BETE 25 HE reclassifications have no effect on the reported financial position,
FEAWRE TIELBEBRN MY - results or cash flows of the Group.

BEUEM O BREAKEERESHIB
AR REIRERERBTE -

REEIZERERA R
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48,

ADFZMBRRE

RIBFERADEH BB KE R
B3R ARAMBHRARERFBEZ

SFBIRMT :

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the

Company and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

2017 2016
izt AR¥TT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(4E31))
(Restated)
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
MEE - WEEERE  Property, plant and equipment 196 356
M A AR Interest in subsidiaries 11,562,066 10,590,571
At E 2 & BB E  Available-for-sale financial assets 522,587 506,484
12,084,849 11,097,411
REBEE Current assets
FET B R FEUFRIE  Prepayments and other receivables 27,751 35,095
B AR ZERFKIE Amount due from a subsidiary 2,722,521 1,875,285
IR{TEEB NI Bank balances and cash 229,300 507,835
2,979,572 2,418,215
wmEE Total assets 15,064,421 13,515,626
RENEIZER
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48. Zﬁﬁﬁjz,liﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ/ﬂ,ﬁ(ég) 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
2017 2016
i3 AR¥For ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(4FEZI)
(Restated)
BRERRAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RA R #E Capital and reserves
AR Issued capital 235,053 234,767
B @ (8 Share premium 611,736 523,278
M Reserves 48(a) 6,538,442 2,679,243
FEY TN Total equity 7,385,231 3,437,288
kRBARE Non-current liabilities
BRAREE Financial liabilities at fair value
AR R AE B 5 AR through profit or loss
RENEREE 37,448 152,650
REBEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 4,105,080 5,249,431
BTIRMNEE Employee benefit obligations 47,442 109,161
4,189,970 5,511,242
REBAE Current liabilities
E R SR Other payables 68,346 74,765
1A Taxation 28,000 —
BEEEZ Current portion of interest-bearing
BVERER 5> borrowings 3,392,874 4,492,331
3,489,220 4,567,096
BmEE Total liabilities 7,679,190 10,078,338
BRAREE Total equity and liabilities 15,064,421 13,515,626

M2018F3I A0 ESTEHEN Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20

REFEL AU TATIRERES March 2018 and signed on its behalf by
FLFE M Wei Ing-Chou H H# — BB Junichiro Ida
E & Director ZEZ Director
EEERARAT
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48. ARFZPBRRR(E)

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(a) HFEEZ2E (a) Movements of the reserves
RHBEE MERE REERE BRERE
fE EMERE R fitE Share-
Capital  Remeasur-  Exchange Investment based &R
redemption ement translation revaluation  payment  Retained o
feserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Profits Total
ARETT AEETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETZ
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
M016F1 518 (EE5)) At 1 January 2016 (Restated) 400 (85,973) 381,531 48706 382,542 813,070 1,540,276
RER R Profit for the year — — — — — 1,873,949 1,873,949
KEEEMEENE Other comprehensive income (loss)

(B#E) for the year — 53827 (46317) 13,05 - — 20,566
BRBROI 7R Equity settled share-based transactions - — - — 55157 — 55157
REBRET BB 2RG Shares issued under share option scheme — — — — (4,220) — (4,220)
BRREAN Shares option lapsed — — — — (3,387) 3,387 —
BHERRE2015FREEE 2015 final dividend approved and paid — — — - —  (806,485)  (806,485)
20165128318 (£57)) At 31 December 2016 (Restated) 400 (32,146) 335214 61,762 430,092 1,883,921 2,679,243
R2017F1818 (BEF) At 1 January 2017 (Restated) 400 (32,146) 335,214 61,762 430,092 1,883,921 2,679,243
RER R Profit for the year - - - - — 4,460,695 4,460,695
AEEHMPENR Other comprehensive income (loss)

(B8) for the year — 28247 (158,036) 86,265 — —  (4352)
EREERNT R FE Equity settled share-based transactions - — — — 44234 — 44234
RiEERET B2 R Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (2135) - (2135)
BRERN Share option lapsed - - - —  (24852) 24,852 —
BHEREE016ERERES 2016 final dividend approved and paid - - - - — (580,849) (580,849)
R2017F12 4318 At 31 December 2017 400 (3,899) 177,178 148,027 428,117 5,788,619 6,538,442

R2017F12A31H - KARAIA 5
Bl REBRERE B RRNRE
2 &8 A A R%6,400,355,0007C
(2016 4F : A K& #2,407,199,000

Jr) e

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s distributable reserves

including retained profits and share premium amounted to
RMB6,400,355,000 (2016: RMB2,407,199,000).

REMEIZAR
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49. FEMEAT 49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
THBFERAARIEENEEES The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
ZXEWBAR  EERAEZEN indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
B AFENZBEENER > 4 are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
KAEBEEENEELND == portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
RAFNNEMBATINER giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
fRiIgLEK ° excess length.

HMmA
¥
Place of HEMER/TEITRA FEAR B RELL Bl
8 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# Gk
Directly Indirectly
RAEAERREVVERRFE HEREE uss$2 100% - RAZRK
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
REERRMERAT HE US$72,000,000 - 100% BHEREEHRFEE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
BMERRBERAH FE US$31,000,000 - 100% RERHEHER
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles

* MMEERBERAR HE US$151,500,000 - 100% BERHEHEE

* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

of instant noodles

* ERERRMERAR HE US$3,000,000 - 100% BERHEREE

* Master Kong (Kunming) Convenient PRC Manufacture and sale

Food Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
EERRRRERAF HE US$17,000,000 - 100% HERHESERE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. # PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
REESRMERAHF e US$17,800,000 - 100% BHERHEREE
Wuhan Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
AXERRmERAR i US$44,300,000 - 100% BUEREEHEE
Xian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
B8 EHRmARAH i US$5,000,000 - 100% BUEREEHFE
Qingdao Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
RREERRmBRAF HhE US$11,200,000 - 100% BERHEHRE
Harbin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
BEEGRMARAR e US$4,500,000 - 100% BUERHEHRE
Fujian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

EEEERARAT
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49. FEMBAT(E) 49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
HmAT
EEME
Place of HEMEX/TRIRE FE A5 R R L A
28 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# B3
Directly Indirectly
* BRESERAERAT e US$14,000,000 - 100% BUEREEHEE
* NanlJing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
© REECER) AERRERAT e US$6,000,000 - 100% BEREERERE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Convenient PRC Manufacture and sale
Food Co., Ltd. * of instant noodles
* KHERRRERAR el US$17,000,000 - 100% BUEREEHEE
* Chengdu Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* RV (ZE) FRARRERAR el US$5,000,000 - 100% BUERHEEHFEE
* Master Kong (Chongging) Convenient Food ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
* BNEERABRAA R US$50,000,000 - 100% HERBEEFFEE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
EERRRMAERAA HERHESERE
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$22,000,000 — 100%  Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
FRANE 7 B (P ) BRAT e US$227,500,000 - 100% HEER
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding

(China) Co., Ltd.

FRAb RS BV) ER A RERLEHS US$1 100% - REER
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
BMEFRERARE (TE)ERAF e US$98,900,000 - 100% #®ERK
Master Kong Instant Foods Investment PRC Investment holding

(China) Co., Ltd.

REERRBERAA HE US$37,000,000 - 100% SUERHEFERM
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant food

MMEERRERAR HE US$18,400,000 - 100% HERHESRRR
Hangzhou Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant food

FRESR S BV) BERAF EBEURES US$55,263 90.50% - REER
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
FREDEIZAR
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49. TEMBLTE)

49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

HmA
EEME
Place of HEMER/TRIRE PB4 R L A
Eg04 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# B3
Directly Indirectly
RAERREREBA FEHS US$10,527.37 25.4% 4751%  BREAZR
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages HoIdlng Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
* RERRRBERRA e US$60,840,000 — 7291% BEREERM
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BINERRRERAR el US$20,000,000 - 7291% HEREERSD
Guangzhou Tlngjln Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* INERRRERRT hEl US$38,100,000 — 7291% BENRHESRR
* Hangzhou Tlnng Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* ERE () R ARA HhE US$28,350,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
* Master Kong (Hangzhou) Beverage Co., Ltd.*  PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RERRRBEBRAT HE US$73,500,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
EEEERMARAT e US$24,000,000 — 7291% HEREERM
Chongging ng in Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* EERERMERAT e US$15,000,000 — 7291% BEREERM
* Qingdao Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BRERRRARAR hE US$13,700,000 - 7291% HEREERSD
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RBEEERAERLT Bl US$33,000,000 — 7291% BEREERR
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RRBEEZRMABRAA R US$12,000,000 — 7291% BEREESRM
* Kunming Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BHNERRBBRAF e US$24,000,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
* Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BMNIERRABRAT FEl US$16,000,000 — 7291% HEREESM
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages

EEMEERARAR
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49. TEMBAT(E)

49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

HmAT
EEME
Place of HEMEX/TRIRE FE A5 R R L A
28 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# B3
Directly Indirectly
* REE(ER) RRBRAF e US$41,000,000 — 7291% BERHEESRD
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co. Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* REE(AR) RRBRAF e US$48,500,000 — 7291% BERHEESRR
* Master Kong (Xi‘an) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BRI (RE) RRBRAR el US$31,800,000 — 7291% BERHEERG
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BNEZRGERD B US$36,500,000 — 7291% BEREESRM
* Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BMNERSRERAT HhE US$59,300,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
* Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* B (SEAE)RAERAR e US$12,000,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
* Master Kong (Wulumugi) Beverage Co., Ltd.*  PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BRERRBERAF e US$12,000,000 — 7291% BERHEESRD
* Baotou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* B RRRAERAA e US$28,500,000 — 7291% BERHEESRR
* Langfang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BNEERRERA el US$41,500,000 — 7291% BERHEERG
* Suzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
FEERRRE(PE)ERAF h US$87,702,000 — 7291%  #ERK
Master Kong Beverage Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
TERRER(BR)E Bk Uss$2 — 7291%  REER
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) L|m|ted Hong Kong Investment holding
BE(TE)REBRAR e US$358,216,517 — 7291%  RERK
PepsiCo Investment (China) Limited PRC Investment holding

REMEIZAR
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49. TEMBLTE)

49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

HmA
EEME
Place of HEMER/TRIRE PB4 R L A
Eg04 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# B3
Directly Indirectly
BERR(EMBRAF e US$197,800,000 — 7291% HEREERM
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BMBERTLHHERRE e US$66,650,000 — 7291% BEREERM
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited* of beverages
* ERBETERRERRA el US$14,119,449 — 4739% BHEREEHRD
* Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* REAFWEASHERAR el US$20,000,000 — 41.92% HERHEERRD
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited # of beverages
* REASWERHERAR e RMB100,000,000 — 64.16% BERHESRR
* Tianjin PepsiCo Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
KBEERHERAF e US$6,600,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
Chengdu PepsiCo Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BNBEHHBERRF e US$1,350,000 — 7291% HERHEERS
Lanzhou Pepsi Beverages Company Limited #  PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* EEAFAREHERAR e US$17,845,000 — 68.83% HERHERM
* Chongging Pepsi-Tianfu Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Co., Limited of beverages
RIBEALRRERAR i US$12,250,000 - 7291% BEEREEHRM
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* MNBETEBRHERAT e US$10,400,000 — 36.46% RENHESRR
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
ROBETERHERAR HhE US$28,000,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages
BMNEETLHRMBERAR e RMB19,764,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BERM(EE)BRAH HE US$9,000,000 — 51.04% SHEREERR
Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages

EEMEERARAR
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group"”) set out on pages 107 to 249, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

REDBEIZAR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Key Audit Matter

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB28,015 million at 31 December 2017. Of which,
the carrying value of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at 31
December 2017 was RMB17,452 million and the related depreciation
charge for the year then ended was RMB2,236 million. Any
impairment of those assets identified may have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements. An impairment loss of RMB224
million has been recognised for certain individual machinery and
equipment for the year ended 31 December 2017.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, change of useful lives of assets, significant
change in use of assets with adverse effect on the Group, prolonged
period of time being idle and economic performance of an asset which
is expected to be worse than expected, to assess whether there is any
indication that machinery and equipment may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment review will be conducted.
The carrying value of the assets will be written down to their estimated
recoverable amount which is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The Group has estimated the recoverable
amounts of the machinery and equipment principally based on their
value in use.

We have identified the carrying value of machinery and equipment as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements. The impairment review of machinery and equipment also
involves a significant degree of management judgement in considering
the indicators of impairment and determining the key assumptions
applied in estimating recoverable amounts based on a value in use
model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii) and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures in relation to management'’s impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment included:

a)  Discussing process and basis used to identify indicators of possible
impairment of machinery and equipment with management and
reviewing utilisation records and profitability of the machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

b)  Assessing the appropriateness of using value in use model in
estimating the recoverable amounts of the cash generating units
to which the assets belong;

¢)  Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow model used;

d)  Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market; and

e)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets.

Acquisition of Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd (“HZPS")
and impairment assessment of goodwill

Key Audit Matter

During the year, the Group acquired an additional 25% equity interest
in HZPS from another shareholder of HZPS (the “Vendor”). In addition,
the Vendor also issued an authorisation letter (the “Authorisation
Letter”) to the Group under which the Group shall be entitled
irrevocably all the rights and benefits of the aforesaid 25% equity
interest in HZPS currently held by the Vendor for a period from the date
of the Authorisation Letter to the completion date of the registration of
the equity transfer (the “Equity Transfer”). The registration of the Equity
Transfer with the relevant government authority is currently in progress
and expected to be completed on or before 30 June 2019.

Through the execution of a sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA")
and the Authorisation Letter, the equity interest in HZPS held by the
Group increased from 25% to 50% and the Group holds a majority
of the voting rights of HZPS. The management concluded that the
Group has control over HZPS and this associate became a subsidiary
of the Group from the effective date of the Authorisation Letter on 1
September 2017.
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The accounting for this acquisition required a significant amount of
judgement and estimations, including the determination of the date of
acquisition, the date of obtaining control over HZPS, the measurement
of the acquisition-date values of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed and the estimation of the contingent consideration.

The Group recognised goodwill of RMB98 million from the step
acquisition. Management performs annual impairment test on goodwill.
The goodwill was allocated to related cash generating unit (“CGU"),
and the recoverable amount of CGU was determined by management
based on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projection. The
calculations involved significant judgement and estimations, such as
forecast cash flows, discount rates and growth rates.

Related disclosures are included in notes 19 and 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our key procedures in relation to the accounting for acquisition included:

a)  Inspecting the SPA and the Authorisation Letter to understand the
terms of acquisition;

b)  Obtaining direct confirmation from the Vendor to ascertain the
existence of rights and benefits entitled by the Group through the
execution of SPA and the Authorisation Letter;

¢)  Obtaining legal opinion from an independent lawyer to ascertain
the legal enforceability of the Authorisation Letter in the PRC;

d)  Checking calculation and testing the valuation of and accounting
for consideration payable and contingent consideration payable;

e)  Assessing the identification of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed and challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions
made in the acquisition-date valuation of the assets and liabilities;
and

f) Considering the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in respect of
the acquisition.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures in relation to the impairment test of goodwill
included:

a)  Assessing the identification of CGU based on the Group’s
accounting policies and our understanding of the Group's
business;

b)  Assessing the value-in-use calculation methodology;

)  Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge and understanding of the business and market;

d)  Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow model used;

e)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of the budgets.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in this annual report
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibility for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities and business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 20 March 2018

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793
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